Public Document

GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
DATE:

Friday, 10 July 2020

TIME:

10.30 am

VENUE:

Via Microsoft Teams Live Event

ANNUAL MEETING
Item

Pages

1.

APOLOGIES

2.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR 2020/21
To appoint a Chair.

3.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR(S) FOR 2020/21
To appoint a Vice Chair(s).

4.

MEMBERSHIP FOR 2020/21
To note the membership of the Committee.
Members
Stuart Haslam
Richard Gold
Angeliki Stogia
Naeem Hassan
Ateeque Ur-Rehman
Phil Burke

Representing
Bolton
Bury
Manchester
Manchester
Oldham
Rochdale

Political Party
Conservative
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour

Please note that this meeting will be livestreamed via www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

Roger Jones
David Meller
Warren Bray
Steve Adshead
Joanne Marshall
Sean Fielding
Roy Walker
John Leech
Dzidra Noor
Howard Sykes
Shah Wazir
Barry Warner
Doreen Dickinson
Peter Robinson
Nathan Evans
Mark Aldred

5.

Salford
Stockport
Tameside
Trafford
Wigan
GMCA
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment
Mayoral appointment

Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Liberal Democrat
Labour
Liberal Democrat
Labour
Labour
Conservative
Labour
Conservative
Labour

Substitutes
Representing
Derek Bullock
Bolton
tbc
Bolton
Lucy Smith
Bury
Basat Shiekh
Manchester
Eddy Newman
Manchester
tbc
Rochdale
Mike McCusker
Salford
tbc
Tameside
James Wright
Trafford
Paul Prescott
Wigan
Eamonn O’Brien
GMCA
David Wilkinson
Mayoral appointment
John Hudson
Mayoral appointment
Linda Holt
Mayoral appointment
Angie Clark
Mayoral appointment
MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT

Political Party
Conservative
Conservative
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Labour
Liberal Democrat
Conservative
Conservative
Liberal Democrat
1-6

To remind Members of their obligations under the GMCA Members Code of
Conduct.
6.

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND RULES OF PROCEDURE
To undertake and annual review of the Committee’s Terms of Reference and
Rules of Procedure.

7.

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
a) To appoint five members to the Greater Manchester Accessible
Transport Board.

7 - 28

b) To appoint one member to the Green City Region Partnership.

ORDINARY BUSINESS
8.

CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

9.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

29 - 32

To receive declarations of interest in any item for discussion at the meeting.
A blank form for declaring interests has been circulated with the agenda;
please ensure that this is returned to the Governance & Scrutiny Officer at
the start of the meeting.
10.

MAYORAL UPDATE
Verbal overview from the Mayor of Greater Manchester, Andy Burnham.

11.

TRANSPORT NETWORK PERFORMANCE

33 - 50

Report of Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer, TfGM.
12.

TRANSPORT SUPPORTING GREATER MANCHESTER'S RECOVERY

51 - 60

Report of Stephen Rhodes, Customer Director, TfGM.
13.

FORTHCOMING CHANGES TO THE BUS NETWORK

61 - 126

Report of Alison Chew, Head of Bus Services, TfGM.
14.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press
and public should be excluded from the meeting for the following items on
business on the grounds that this involved the likely disclosure of exempt
information, as set out in the relevant paragraphs of Part 1, Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972 and that the public interest in maintaining
the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information.

15.

FORTHCOMING CHANGES TO THE BUS NETWORK - PART B

127 - 130

Report of Alison Chew, Head of Bus Services, TfGM.
For copies of papers and further information on this meeting please refer to the website
www.greatmanchester-ca.gov.uk. Alternatively, contact the following:
Senior Governance & Scrutiny Officer: Nicola Ward
nicola.ward@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk

This agenda was issued on 2 July 2020 on behalf of Julie Connor, Secretary to the Greater
Manchester Combined Authority, Churchgate House, 56 Oxford Street, Manchester M1 6EU.

Agenda Item 5
SHORT GUIDE
GMCA CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS
1. WHO
Mandatory for
The Mayor
Members of GMCA
Substitute Members of GMCA
Voting Co-opted Members of GMCA’s committees
Appointed Members of Joint Committees
Voluntary for
Non-voting Co-opted Members of GMCA’s committees
Elected members from GM districts when they represent GMCA
2. WHEN
Acting in your official capacity, and
In meetings of:


GMCA; or



GMCA’s Committees or Sub-Committees, Joint Committees or Joint SubCommittees

3. CONDUCT
General Principles
Selflessness: the public interest not personal gain
Integrity: avoid undue influences
Objectivity: decisions made on merit
Accountability: scrutiny is the norm
Openness: transparent decisions with reasons
Honesty: declare interests and avoid conflicts
Leadership: lead by example.

Page 1

DO NOT
o Unlawfully discriminate
o Bully or be abusive
o Intimidate a complainant, a witness, or an investigator under the Code of
Conduct
o Compromise the impartiality of GMCA’s officers
o Disclose confidential information without authority
o Deny lawful access to information
o Bring GMCA into disrepute
o Abuse your position
o Use GMCA’s resources improperly
DO
o Pay due regard to the advice of the Treasurer and Monitoring Officer
o Register your interests
o Declare your interests
INTERESTS

A.

Pecuniary interests (you, your spouse or your partner)
Register within 28 days
o Employment or other paid office
o Sponsorship – payment in respect of expenses as a Member of GMCA, or election
expenses.
o Contracts – between you/your partner (or a body in which you or your partner has a
beneficial interest) and GMCA:
o Land you have an interest in within Greater Manchester
o Corporate Tenancies – where GMCA is the landlord you/your partner (or a body in
which you or your partner has a beneficial interest) is the tenant
o Securities – you have a beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of
business or land in the area of the GMCA
Do not speak or vote at a meeting on a matter in which you have a disclosable
pecuniary interest
Disclose the interest at the meeting
Withdraw from the meeting

It is a criminal offence to fail to register disclosable pecuniary interests and to participate in
any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Page 2

B.

Other Interests
Personal Interests
You have a personal interest o If your well-being or financial position would be affected (i.e. more so than other
ratepayers)
o If the well-being or financial position of somebody close to you would be affected
or the organisations in which they are employed
o If the well-being or financial position of body referred to below would be affected
 A body of which you are in a position of general control or management and
to which you are appointed or nominated by GMCA;
 A body of which you are in a position of general control or management
which
i.exercises functions of a public nature;
ii.is directed to charitable purposes; or
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union),
 the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality
with an estimated value of at least £100.

Disclose the interest at the meeting
You may speak and vote
C

Prejudicial Interests
You have a prejudicial interest Where your personal interest is one which a member of the public would reasonably
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public
interest and it:
 affects your financial position (or those persons or bodies referred to in
section B above); or
 relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration

Page 3

Do not speak or vote at a meeting on a matter in which you have a prejudicial
interest
Disclose the interest at the meeting
Withdraw from the meeting

Page 4

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Terms of Reference of the GM Transport Committee
TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference
1. Overview
The Transport Committee, as a joint committee of the ten Greater Manchester
district councils (‘the Constituent Councils’), the GMCA and the Mayor, brings
together the principal local transport decision-making bodies.
The primary role of the Transport Committee is not to replicate strategic decisionmaking functions, but to ensure that through its work, those bodies are able to make
informed and co-ordinated decisions by being fully informed about the operation
and performance of the transport system, its individual modes and the infrastructure
it relies on, including the Key Route Network.
It also has an important role in helping shape the development of transport strategy
and policies, and in advising the GMCA and the Mayor on specific transport issues,
as directed by them. In relation to bus services, the Transport Committee will
undertake the function of making decisions in relation to the supported bus network,
which has been delegated by the Mayor.
In summary the three key areas of work for the Transport Committee will be to
ensure:


Accountability: active and regular monitoring of the performance of the
transport network, including the Key Route Network, the operation of the GM
Road Activities Permit Scheme, road safety activities, etc as well as all public
transport modes. This role will include holding service operators, TfGM,
highway authorities and transport infrastructure providers to public account,
and to recommend appropriate action as appropriate;



Implementation: oversee the delivery of agreed Local Transport Plan
commitments. This includes the active oversight of the transport capital
programme, and decisions over supported bus services network to be made
within the context of policy and budgets set by the Mayor and the GMCA as
appropriate; and



Policy Development: undertake policy development on specific issues, as may
be directed by the Mayor and / or the GMCA.

Page 7

2.
Transport functions of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority
(‘GMCA’) referred to the Transport Committee
2.1

The following transport functions of the GMCA are not delegated but are
referred by the GMCA or, as the case may be, the Mayor to the Transport
Committee in order for the Transport Committee to make recommendations
(where appropriate) to the GMCA or, as the case may be, the Mayor in
respect of:
(a) Considering proposals by TfGM to promote or oppose any Bill in Parliament
pursuant to Section 10(1)(xxix) of the Transport Act 1968; and
(b) Policy reviews and development on specific issues, undertaken by the
Transport Committee on the direction of the Mayor and/or the GMCA.

3.

3.1

Transport functions of the GMCA delegated to the
Transport Committee
The following transport functions of the GMCA are delegated by the GMCA or,
as the case may be, the Mayor to the Transport Committee, subject to the
Transport Committee exercising these functions in accordance with any
transport policies of the GMCA and the Mayor, the Local Transport Plan and
the agreed transport budget and borrowing limits (and without prejudice to
the GMCA’s or, as the case may be, the Mayor’s right to discharge such
functions directly):
(a)

Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM (and
where appropriate recommending that the GMCA exercise the power
pursuant to Section 15(6) of the Transport Act 1968 to give to TfGM such
directions as appear to the Transport Committee to be appropriate to
secure the observance of the rights of the GMCA);

(b)

Ensuring that the TfGM secures the provision of appropriate public
passenger transport services pursuant to Section 9A(3) of the Transport
Act 1968;

(c)

Considering what local bus information should be made available, and the
way in which it should be made available pursuant to Sections 139 to143
of the Transport Act 2000;

(d)

Ensuring that the TfGM implements those actions delegated to it for
promoting the economic, social and environmental well-being of Greater

Page 8

Manchester and its residents pursuant to Section 99 of the Local
Transport Act 2008;

3.2.

(e)

Monitoring performance against the Local Transport Plan and other
transport policies of the Mayor and the GMCA;

(f)

Formulating, developing and monitoring procedures for public
consultation on the GMCA’s and the Mayor’s transport policies;

(g)

Active promotion of Greater Manchester’s transport and travel interests
as set by the GMCA and the Mayor;

(h)

Determining the operation, performance, contract management and
development of tendered bus services, bus stations/stops, and passenger
transport services;

(i)

Determining the operation, performance and development of the GMCA’s
accessible transport provision pursuant to Sections 106(1) and 106(2) of
the Transport Act 1985; and

(j)

Monitoring the operation and performance of Metrolink, bus and local
rail services and initiating appropriate action, including making
recommendations to the GMCA and/or the Mayor.

The following transport functions of the GMCA, which are delegated by the
Constituent Councils to the GMCA, are sub-delegated by the GMCA to the
Transport Committee, subject to the Transport Committee exercising these
functions in accordance with any transport policies of the GMCA or the Mayor,
the Local Transport Plan and the GMCA’s agreed transport budget and
borrowing limits:
(a) In respect of those functions:
(i) under section 23 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (pedestrian
crossings) so far as it relates to Pelican and Puffin crossings as defined
by regulation 3(1) of the Zebra, Pelican and Puffin Crossings
Regulations 1997; and
(ii) under section 65 (placing of traffic signs) of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 so far as it relates to traffic signs that are traffic
light signals where “traffic light signals” means a traffic sign of the

Page 9

size, colour and type prescribed by any of the following regulations of
the Traffic Signs Regulations 2002:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Regulation 33 – Light signals for the control of vehicular traffic –
standard form
Regulation 34 – Green arrow light signals for the control of vehicular
traffic
Regulation 37 – Light signals for control of vehicular traffic entering
or proceeding on motorways and all purpose dual carriageway
Regulation 39 – Light signals to control traffic at level crossings etc.
Regulation 41 – Light signals for the control of tramcars
Regulation 44 – Light signals for lane control of Vehicular traffic
Regulation 45 – Warning light signal for motorways and all-purpose
dual carriageway roads
Regulation 46 – Matrix signs for motorways and all purpose dual
carriageway roads
Regulation 47 – Light signals at signal controlled pedestrian facilities
Regulation 48 – Light signals at equestrian crossings
Regulation 49 – Light signals at toucan crossings
Regulation 52 – Light signals for pedestrian traffic at level crossings

the GMCA delegates to the Transport Committee responsibility for:
(i) Making recommendations to the GMCA in
respect of:
•

•

the development of policies relating to the installation,
maintenance, and management of Traffic Light Signals that take
both strategic and local strategies and frameworks into account;
and
the GMCA’s budget for Traffic Light Signals.

(ii)

Making arrangements for the discharge of the functions to be
carried out in relation to Traffic Light Signals by TfGM.

(iii)

Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM
in relation to the Traffic Light Signal function.

(b) In respect of those functions under section 2 of the Road Traffic Reduction
Act 1997 (“the Transport Studies Function”) the GMCA delegates to the
Transport Committee responsibility for:

Page 10

(i) Making recommendations to the GMCA in
respect of:

3.3

•

producing and updating policies in respect of the Transport
Studies Function which are consistent with the Greater
Manchester Strategy, the GM Local Transport Plan objectives
and GMCA’s and the Constituent Council’s budgets;

•

settling budgets in respect of the Transport Studies Function

(ii)

Making arrangements for the discharge of the functions to be
carried out in relation to the Transport Studies Function by TfGM.

(iii)

Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM
in relation to the Transport Studies Function.

In respect of functions under section 39 (2) and (3) of the Road Traffic Act 1988
(‘the road safety function’), which may be exercised concurrently with
Constituent Councils, the GMCA delegates to the Transport Committee
responsibility for:
(a) Producing and developing policies in relation to the road safety function.
(b) Drawing up budgets in relation to the road safety function insofar as it is
exercised by the TfGM. Determining the tasks to be carried out in relation
to the road safety function by TfGM.
(c) Making recommendations to the GMCA and the Mayor in respect of the
development of policies for the promotion and encouragement of safe
transport to, from and within its area under s108 Transport Act 2000.
(d) Monitoring and overseeing the activities and performance of TfGM.

4.

Transport functions of the Constituent Councils delegated directly to the
Transport Committee

4.1

The following transport related functions of the Constituent Councils will be
delegated directly to the Transport Committee subject to the Transport
Committee exercising these functions in accordance with any policies of the
GMCA (as local transport authority), the Local Transport Plan and the terms of
the delegation from the Constituent Councils:
(a) Carrying out actions to facilitate the performance by local traffic
authorities of their duty to manage their road traffic on their on their

Page 11

own roads and facilitating the same on other local authorities’ roads
pursuant to Sections 16 and 17 (except for sub-sections 17 (2) and (3)) of
the Traffic Management Act 2004, including in particular –
(i)

establishing processes for identifying things (including future
occurrences) which are causing or have the potential to cause road
congestion or other disruption to the movement of traffic on the
road network;

(ii)

determining specific policies and objectives in relation to strategic
roads;

(iii)

monitoring the effectiveness of traffic authorities in managing their
road network.

(b) Preparing and carrying out a programme of measures designed to
promote road safety, including carrying out road safety studies, studies
into accidents, accident prevention campaigns, the dissemination of
information and advice relating to the use of roads and arranging for the
giving of practical training to road users pursuant to Sections 39(2) and
39(3)(a) and (b) of the Road Traffic Act 1988.
5. GM Transport Committee – Other Provisions
5.1 The GM Transport Committee may establish sub-committees.
5.2 When establishing a sub-committee, the GM Transport Committee will
determine (i)
the terms of reference of the sub-committee
(ii)
the size and membership of the sub-committee
(iii)
the Chair (and Vice-Chair, if any) of the sub-committee
(iv)
any delegated powers of the sub-committee
(v)
the period (where appropriate) for which the sub-committee will
remain constituted.
5.3

Appointments to sub-committees will be made in accordance with the
principles of political balance set out in Section 15(5) of the LGHA 1989.

5.4

The GM Transport Committee and any sub-committee of the GM Transport
Committee may, in respect of a function delegated to the GM Transport
Committee by the GMCA under the GM Transport Committee Terms of
Reference arrange for its discharge by an officer of one of the Constituent
Councils or by TfGM.

Page 12

5.5

The GM Transport Committee and any sub-committee of the GM Transport
Committee may, in respect of a Mayoral Transport Function listed in Schedule
2 of the GMCA Transport Order which the Mayor has delegated to the GM
Transport Committee under the GM Transport Committee Terms of Reference
arrange for its discharge by an officer of one of the Constituent Councils or by
TfGM.

5.6

The GM Transport Committee and any sub-committee of the GM Transport
Committee may, in respect of a function delegated to them by the Constituent
Councils under the GM Transport Committee Terms of Reference, arrange for
its discharge by an officer of one of the Constituent Councils and may enter
into agreements with TfGM for the provision of services by TfGM.

5.7

The GM Transport Committee will establish a scheme of delegation to subcommittees and officers and will review the scheme annually.

5.8

The GM Transport Committee will conduct its business in accordance with this
Agreement, including the Rules of Procedure set out in Schedule 1.

Page 13

SCHEDULE 1
GM Transport Committee
Rules of Procedure

1.

Interpretation, Suspension and Variation/Revocation of Rules of Procedure

1.1

The ruling of the Chair on the interpretation of these Rules in relation to all
questions of order and matters arising in debate shall be final.

1.2

References in these Rules to the “Chair” means the member of the GM
Transport Committee for the time being presiding at the meeting of the GM
Transport Committee , and a meeting of the GM Transport Committee.
References in these Rules to the “Secretary” means the officer of the GMCA
who is appointed to discharge the role of the Secretary to the GM Transport
Committee.

1.3

These Rules shall apply to the GM Transport Committee and any Sub
Committee of the GM Transport Committee , and any reference to the GM
Transport Committee shall accordingly include reference to a Sub Committee
of theGM Transport Committee.

1.4*

Except for those provisions which accord with the provisions of the Local
Government Acts (and which are indicated with an asterisk *) any Rule may
be suspended at a meeting of the GM Transport Committee with the consent
of the majority of the whole number of members of the GM Transport
Committee but not otherwise.

1.5*

These Rules (except for those Rules marked with asterisk*) may be varied or
revoked by a decision of a two-thirds majority of the GM Transport Committee
and any motion to vary or revoke any of these Rules shall, when proposed and
seconded, stand adjourned without discussion to the next ordinary meeting
of the GM Transport Committee which shall determine the matter having
considered a report of the secretary to the GM Transport Committee on the
proposed variation or revocation.

2.
2.1*

Chair and Vice-Chairs
The Chair of the GM Transport Committee will be appointed annually by the
Mayor from among its members and shall, unless they resign, cease to be

Page 14

members of the GM Transport Committee or become disqualified, act until
their successor becomes entitled to act as Chair.

2.2* The appointment of the Chair, for recommendation to the Mayor shall be the
first business transacted at the Annual Meeting of the GM Transport
Committee.
2.3*

On a vacancy arising in the office of Chair for whatever reason, the GM
Transport Committee shall recommend an appointment to fill the vacancy at
the next ordinary meeting of the GM Transport Committee held after the date
on which the vacancy occurs, or, if that meeting is held within 14 days after
that date, then not later than the next following meeting. The member
appointed shall hold such office for the remainder of the year in which such
vacancy occurred.

3.

Meetings

3.1*

The Annual Meeting of the GM Transport Committee shall be held in June or
the month after local elections on a date and at a time determined by the GM
Transport Committee.

3.2*

Ordinary meetings of the GM Transport Committee TfGMC for the transaction
of general business shall be held on such dates and at such times as the GM
Transport Committee shall determine.

3.3*

An Extraordinary Meeting of the GM Transport Committee may be called at any
time by the Chair .

4.

Notice of Meetings

Page 15

4.1

At least five clear days before a meeting of the GM Transport Committee or
one of its Sub Committees:
(a)

(b)

notice of the time and place of the intended meeting shall be published
by the Secretary and posted at Churchgate House, Oxford Street,
Manchester, M1 6EU; and
a summons to attend the meeting, specifying an agenda for the
meeting, shall be sent by electronic email to the usual email address of
each member of the GM Transport Committee, or any other email
address notified to notified to the Secretary by a member of the GM
Transport Committee.

4.2*

Lack of service on a member of the GM Transport Committee of the summons
shall not affect the validity of a meeting of the GM Transport Committee.

4.3*

A member of the GM Transport Committee may require a particular item of
business, including any motion, which is relevant to the powers of the GM
Transport Committee, to be discussed at an ordinary meeting of the GM
Transport Committee subject to at least eight clear days notice of such
intention being given to the Secretary in writing, signed by the member
concerned and specifying the business to be discussed. The Secretary shall set
out in the agenda for each meeting of the GM Transport Committee the items
of business requested by members (if any) in the order in which they have been
received, unless the member concerned has given prior written notice to the
Secretary prior to the issue of the agenda for the meeting, for it to be
withdrawn. If the member concerned is not present at the meeting when an
item of which they have given notice comes up for discussion, this item shall,
unless the GM Transport Committee decides otherwise, be treated as
withdrawn. A member shall not have more than one item of business, or
motion, standing in their name to be discussed at any meeting of the GM
Transport Committee.

4.4

No motion by way of notice to rescind any resolution which has been passed
within the preceding six months, nor any motion by way of notice to the same
effect as any motion which has been negatived within the preceding six
months, shall be in order, unless the notice thereof shall have been given in
time for inclusion on the agenda for the meeting, in accordance with
paragraph 4.3 above, and the notice shall have been signed by four other
members in addition to the member who is to propose the motion.

4.5*

Except in the case of business required by these Rules to be transacted at a
meeting of the GM Transport Committee, and other business brought before
the meeting as a matter of urgency, and of which the Secretary shall have prior

Page 16

notice and which the Chair considers should be discussed at the meeting, no
business shall be transacted at a meeting of the GM Transport Committee
other than that specified in the agenda for the meeting.
5.

Chair of Meeting

5.1* At each meeting of the GM Transport Committee the Chair, if present, shall
preside.

5.2* If the Chair is absent from a meeting of the TfGMC, the Secretary shall invite the
members present to elect a member to preside for the duration of the
meeting or until such time as the Chair joins the meeting.
5.3 Any power or function of the Chair in relation to the conduct of a meeting shall be
exercised by the person presiding at the meeting.
6.

Quorum

6.1* No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the full GM Transport
Committee unless at least 8 of the members are present).
6.2*

The quorum for any meeting of a Sub Committee of the GM Transport
Committee shall be one third of the membership of that body.

6.3 If at the time for which a meeting is called, and for 15 minutes thereafter, a
quorum is not present, then no meeting shall take place.
6.4 If during any meeting of the GM Transport Committee the Chair, after counting
the number of members present, declares that there is not a quorum present,
the meeting shall stand adjourned to a time fixed by the Chair. If there is no
quorum and the Chair does not fix a time for the reconvened meeting, the
meeting shall stand adjourned to the next ordinary meeting of the GM
Transport Committee.
7.

Order of Business

7.1 At every meeting of the GM Transport Committee the order of business shall be
to select a person to preside if the Chair is absent and thereafter shall be in
accordance with the order specified in the agenda for the meeting, except that
such order may be varied (a)

by the Chair at his/her discretion, or

Page 17

(b)

on a request agreed to by the GM
Transport Committee .

7.2 The Chair may bring before the GM Transport Committee at their discretion any
matter that they consider appropriate to bring before the GM Transport
Committee as a matter of urgency.
8.

Submission of Sub Committee Proceedings

8.1 Except where a Sub Committee appointed by the GM Transport Committee is
acting under delegated authority, the Minutes of the proceedings of each of
the GM Transport Committee’s Sub Committees shall be submitted to the GM
Transport Committee for confirmation. Confirmation by the GM Transport
Committee of those Minutes shall constitute approval of the proceedings of
those Sub Committees.
8.2 The Chair of a Sub Committee, or other member of the Sub Committee acting in
their place, shall deal with matters arising during any debate on the
proceedings of the Sub Committee.
8.3 A Chair of a Sub Committee, or other member of the Sub Committee acting in their
place, may, with the consent of the GM Transport Committee, withdraw any
item on the Minutes of that Sub Committee, or correct any factual inaccuracy,
which might otherwise result in the GM Transport Committee being
misinformed on any item in the Sub Committee’s Minutes.
8.4 When considering the Minutes of the proceedings, no motion or amendment shall
be made or proposed, or any discussion allowed upon any matter which,
although within the province of the Sub Committee, does not appear in the
Minutes of the proceedings.
9.

Rules of Debate

Motions
9.1 A Motion (or amendment) shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and
seconded. It shall, if required by the Chair, be put in writing
and handed to the Chair, who shall determine whether it is in order before it
is further discussed or put to the meeting.
9.2 A member when seconding a Motion or amendment may, if they then declare
their intention to do so, reserve their speech until a later period of the debate.
No member may, except at the discretion of the Chair, address the GM
Transport Committee more than once on any Motion. The mover of the
original Motion may reply but shall confine such reply to answering previous

Page 18

speakers and shall not introduce any new matter into the debate. After the
reply the question shall be put forthwith.
9.3 A member when speaking shall address the Chair. If two or more members signify
their desire to speak, the Chair shall call on one to speak: the other or others
shall then remain silent. While a member is speaking no other member shall
intervene unless to raise a point of order or by way of personal explanation.
9.4 A member shall direct his/her speech to the question under discussion or to a
personal explanation or to a point of order. No speech shall exceed five
minutes except by consent of the Chair.
Amendments to Motions
9.5

An amendment shall be relevant to the Motion and shall be either:(a)
(b)

to refer a subject of debate to a Sub Committee for consideration or
reconsideration: or
(i)
to leave out words from the Motion:
(ii)
to leave out words from, and insert or add others to, the
Motion:
(iii)
to insert words in, or add words to, the Motion:
but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the
effect of negating the Motion before the GM Transport Committee.

9.6

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time and no further
amendment shall be moved until the amendment under discussion has been
disposed of. The mover of an amendment shall read the same before speaking
to it.

9.7

If an amendment is negated, other amendments may be moved on the original
Motion. If an amendment is carried, the Motion as amended shall take the
place of the original Motion and shall become the substantive Motion upon
which any further amendment may be moved, except any amendment which
would be inconsistent with that already carried. The right of reply under
paragraph 9.2 above shall not extend to the mover of an amendment which,
having been carried, has become the substantive Motion. No member shall
move more than one amendment on any Motion.

9.8

A member may, with the consent of the GM Transport Committee, signified
without
discussion:(a)

alter a Motion of which they have given notice; or

Page 19

(b)

with the consent of their seconder alter a Motion which they have
moved:

if in either case the alteration is one which could be made as an amendment
thereto.
9.9

A Motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent of
the GM Transport Committee (which shall be signified without discussion) and
no member may speak upon it after the mover has asked permission for its
withdrawal, unless such permission has been refused.

9.10

When a Motion is under debate no other Motion shall be moved except the
following:(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)

That the Motion be amended
That the GM Transport Committee proceed to the next business
That the question be put
That the debate be adjourned
That the meeting be adjourned
That the member named be warned
(By the Chair under paragraph 11.2 below) That the member named
leave the meeting, or
That the press and public be excluded (in accordance with Section
100A of the Local Government Act, 1972).

9.11 A member who has not already spoken on the item under consideration may
move without comment at the conclusion of a speech of another member
“That the GM Transport Committee proceed to the next business”, “That the
question be put”, “That the debate be adjourned” or “That this meeting of the
GM Transport Committee be adjourned” and on the seconding of that Motion
the Chair shall proceed as follows:
(a)

(b)

on a Motion to proceed to the next business, unless in their opinion
the original Motion or amendment has been insufficiently discussed,
they shall first give the mover of the original Motion a right of reply,
and then put to the vote the Motion to proceed to the next business;
if this latter Motion is carried, the original Motion or amendment
under discussion shall be deemed to be withdrawn.
on a Motion that the question be put, unless in their opinion the
Motion or amendment before the meeting has not been sufficiently
discussed, they shall first put to the vote the Motion that the question
be put and, if it is carried, they shall then give the mover of the original
Motion their right of reply under paragraph 9.2 above, before putting
the Motion or any amendment then under discussion to the vote.

Page 20

(c)

(d)

on a Motion to adjourn the debate, if, in the Chair’s opinion, the
Motion or amendment before the meeting has not been sufficiently
discussed, and cannot reasonably be sufficiently discussed on that
occasion, they shall put to the vote a Motion to adjourn the debate to
the next meeting of the GM Transport Committee, or to a time stated,
without giving the mover of the original Motion their right of reply on
that occasion; if the adjournment Motion is carried, then, on the
resumption of the debate, the Chair shall reintroduce the Motion or
amendment before the meeting at the time the debate was adjourned,
and the member who moved the adjournment of the debate shall be
entitled to speak first.
on a Motion to adjourn a meeting of the GM Transport Committee
until a specified date and time, the Chair shall forthwith put such a
Motion to the vote without giving any right of reply to the mover of
any Motion under discussion and, if the Motion is carried, the
remaining business of the day shall stand adjourned until the date and
time stated in the Motion. On the resumption of the meeting of the
GM Transport Committee the procedure in paragraph 9.11(c) above
shall apply.

9.12 No member may move any of the Motions in paragraph 9.11 above on more than
one occasion at each meeting and, when such a Motion is not carried, a second
Motion of the like nature shall not be made within half an hour unless, in the
opinion of the Chair, the circumstances of the question are materially altered.
Points of Order
9.13 A member may, with the permission of the Chair, raise a point of order or in
personal explanation, and shall be entitled to be heard forthwith. A point of
order shall relate only to an alleged breach of the Rules of Procedure or
statutory provision and the member shall specify which part of the Rules of
Procedure or statutory provision and the way in which they consider it has
been broken. A personal explanation shall be confined to some material part
of a former speech by the member which they consider to have been
misunderstood in the present debate.
9.14 The ruling of the Chair on a point of order, or the admissibility of a personal
explanation, shall not be open to discussion.
9.15 Whenever the Chair intervenes during a debate a member then speaking or
offering to speak shall give way.
Motion to exclude the Press and Public

Page 21

9.16 A Motion to exclude the press and public in accordance with Section 100A of the
Local Government Act, 1972 may be moved, without notice, at any meeting of
the GM Transport Committee during an item of business whenever it is likely
that if members of the public were present during that item there would be
disclosure to them of confidential or exempt information as defined in Section
100A of the 1972 Act.
10.
Voting
10.1 Whenever a vote is taken at meetings of the GM Transport Committee it shall
be by a show of hands. On the requisition of any member of the GM Transport
Committee, supported by four other members who signify their support by
rising in their places, and before the vote is taken, the voting on any question
shall be recorded so as to show whether each member present gave their vote
for or against that question or abstained from voting.
10.2* In the case of an equality of votes, the Chair shall have a second, or casting,
vote.
10.3* A member may demand that his/her vote be recorded in the Minutes of the
meeting.
11.

Conduct of Members at meetings

11.1 If at a meeting any member of the GM Transport Committee, misconducts him
or herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chair, or by behaving
irregularly, improperly or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of
the GM Transport Committee, the Chair or any other member may move “That
the member named be warned” and the Motion if seconded shall be put and
determined without discussion.
11.2 If the member named continues such misconduct after a Motion under the
foregoing paragraph has been carried, the Chair shall either:(a)

(b)

move “That the member named leave the meeting” (in which case the
Motion shall be put and determined without seconding or discussion);
and
adjourn the meeting of the GM Transport Committee for such period
as they consider expedient.

11.3 In the event of general disturbance, which in the opinion of the Chair, renders
the due and orderly dispatch of business impossible the Chair, in addition to
any other power vested in him or her may, without question put, adjourn the
meeting of the GM Transport Committee for such period as he or she
considers expedient.

Page 22

12.

Disturbance by Members of the Public

12.1 If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the Chair
shall warn him or her. If they continue the interruption the Chair shall order
his or her removal from the room. In the case of general disturbance in any
part of the room open to the public the Chair shall order that part to be
cleared.
13.

Interests of Members

13.1* A member must have regard to the Code of Conduct for Members of the local
authority for which they are an elected member and their obligations
in relation to the disclosures of, and possible withdrawal from a meeting, for
reason of personal and prejudicial interests.
14.

Appointment of Sub Committees

14.1 The GM Transport Committee shall at the Annual Meeting appoint such Sub
Committees as it has at that, or any earlier meeting, resolved to establish;
may, at any time, appoint such other Sub Committees as are necessary to carry
out the work of the GM Transport Committee; and may, at any time, dissolve
a Sub Committee or alter its membership.
14.2 The terms of reference of Sub Committees shall be approved by the GM
Transport Committee and shall be subject to review at each Annual Meeting.
14.3 The GM Transport Committee shall at each Annual Meeting, or whenever there
is a vacancy in such office, appoint the Chair of each Sub Committee.
14.4 The GM Transport Committee may at any time remove a member from the office
of a Sub Committee and appoint another member to fill the resultant vacancy.
14.5 A member may resign from the office of Chair of a Sub Committee by notice in
writing delivered to the Secretary, the resignation to take effect from the time
of receipt of such notice.
14.6 Wherever possible, a programme of dates and times of Sub Committee meetings
for the ensuing year shall be approved at the Annual Meeting of the GM
Transport Committee, or, on the first appointment of a Sub Committee, at any
other meeting of the GM Transport Committee. Such a programme shall,
however, be capable of variation by the GM Transport Committee, and, in case
of urgency, by the Chair of the Sub Committee.
14.7

GM Transport Committee members may attend a meeting of any Sub
Committee of which they are not a member, but shall not, without the consent

Page 23

of the Chair, take part in any proceedings. They shall not, in any event, move
any Motion or amendment, or vote at such a meeting. Such members may
attend a Sub Committee meeting during consideration of any business
indicated on the agenda as likely to be considered when the public have been
excluded, provided advance written notice has been given to the Secretary of
the member’s intention to attend for the discussion of such business, and his
or her reasons for so doing.
14.8 A member of the GM Transport Committee who has moved a Motion that has
been referred to any Sub Committee shall have notice of the meeting of the
Sub Committee at which it is proposed to consider the Motion. They shall
have the right to attend the meeting and if the member attends, they shall be
afforded an opportunity of explaining the Motion.
15.

Publication of Reports

15.1* Reports or other documents for the consideration of the GM Transport
Committee or a Sub Committee shall be marked “Private & Confidential Not
for Publication” only if the Secretary, as Proper Officer under Section 100B(2)
of the Local Government Act 1972 determines that this should be done on one
or more of the grounds specified in the Act.
15.2 A Member of the GM Transport Committee or a member of the public may
request that an item of business containing exempt information should be
taken in public and such a request should be dealt with by the meeting at
which the item is to be considered in private as the first item on the agenda.
The procedure for dealing with such requests is set out in Rules 16 and 17
below.
15.3* Copies of the agenda of meetings of the GM Transport Committee or its Sub
Committees, including prints of reports or other documents to be submitted
to the GM Transport Committee or Sub Committees (other than reports or
other documents marked “Not for Publication”) shall be furnished prior to the
meeting to representatives of the press, radio and television and shall also be
furnished at the meeting to members of the public attending such meetings.
Such documents shall also be made available for public inspection, at least five
clear days before any meeting, at Churchgate House, Oxford Street, the Town
Hall, Manchester, M1 6EU.
15.4* Where an item or report has been added to an agenda, any revised agenda or
additional report shall be available for public inspection as soon as the item or
report has been added to the agenda, provided copies are also, at that time,
available to members of the .

Page 24

16.

Access to Information Procedure Rules

16.1 Except as otherwise indicated, these rules apply to all meetings of the GM
Transport Committee and its Sub Committees.
16.2 The Rules in Section 16 do not affect any more specific rights to information
contained elsewhere in these Rules of Procedure or the law.
16.3 The GM Transport Committee will supply copies of:
(a)
(b)
(c)

any agenda and reports that are open to public inspection;
any further statements or particulars, if any, as are necessary to
indicate the nature of the items in the agenda; and
if the Secretary thinks fit, copies of any other documents supplied to
members in connection with an item

to any person on payment of a charge for postage and any other costs.
16.4 The GM Transport Committee will make available copies of the following for six
years after a meeting:
(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

the minutes of the meeting, excluding any part of the minutes of
proceedings when the meeting was not open to the public or which
disclose exempt or confidential information;
a summary of any proceedings not open to the public where the
minutes open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair and
coherent record;
the agenda for the meeting;
reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public.

16.5 The relevant Chief Officer will set out in every report a list of those documents
(called background papers) relating to the subject matter of the report that in
his/her opinion:
(a)
(b)

17.

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part
of the report is based; and
which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report
but does not include published works or those which disclose exempt
or confidential information.
Exclusion of access by the public to meetings

(a)

Confidential information – requirement to exclude public

Page 25

17.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that
confidential information would be disclosed.
17.2 Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or
adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act
establishes a presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a
private hearing is necessary for one of the reasons stated in Article 6.
(b)

Meaning of confidential information

17.3 Confidential information means information given to the GM Transport
Committee by a Government department on terms that forbid its public
disclosure or information that cannot be publicly disclosed by reason of a
Court Order or any enactment.
(c)

Meaning of exempt information

17.4 Exempt information means information falling within the following categories
(subject to any qualifications):
(i)
(ii)

information relating to any individual;
information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual;

(iii)

information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information);

(iv)

information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or
contemplated consultations or negotiations in connection with any
labour relations matter arising between the GM Transport Committee
or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under,
the GM Transport Committee;

(v)

information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege
could be maintained in legal proceedings;
information which reveals that the GM Transport Committee proposes
a) to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person; or b) to make an order or
direction under any enactment;
information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection
with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

(vi)

(vii)

(e)

Exclusion of Access by the public to reports

Page 26

17.5 If the Secretary thinks fit, the GM Transport Committee may exclude access by
the public to reports which in his/her opinion relate to items during which the
meeting is likely not to be open to the public. Such reports will be marked
“Not for Publication” together with the category of information likely to be
disclosed.

Page 27

Page 28

GM Transport Committee on 10 July 2020
Declaration of Councillors’ interests in items appearing on the agenda
NAME: ______________________________
Minute Item No. / Agenda Item No.

Nature of Interest

Type of Interest

Personal / Prejudicial /
Disclosable Pecuniary
Personal / Prejudicial /

Page 29

Disclosable Pecuniary
Personal / Prejudicial /
Disclosable Pecuniary
Personal / Prejudicial /

PLEASE NOTE SHOULD YOU HAVE A PERSONAL INTEREST THAT IS PREJUDICIAL IN AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA, YOU SHOULD LEAVE THE ROOM FOR THE DURATION OF THE
DISCUSSION & THE VOTING THEREON.

1

Agenda Item 9

Disclosable Pecuniary

QUICK GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT GMCA MEETINGS
This is a summary of the rules around declaring interests at meetings. It does not replace the Member’s Code of Conduct, the full description can be found in
the GMCA’s constitution Part 7A.
Your personal interests must be registered on the GMCA’s Annual Register within 28 days of your appointment onto a GMCA committee and any changes to
these interests must notified within 28 days. Personal interests that should be on the register include:
 Bodies to which you have been appointed by the GMCA
 Your membership of bodies exercising functions of a public nature, including charities, societies, political parties or trade unions.
You are also legally bound to disclose the following information called DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS which includes:
 You, and your partner’s business interests (eg employment, trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which you are associated)
 You and your partner’s wider financial interests (eg trust funds, investments, and assets including land and property).

Page 30

 Any sponsorship you receive.

FAILURE TO DISCLOSE THIS INFORMATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE
STEP ONE: ESTABLISH WHETHER YOU HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS OF THE AGENDA
If the answer to that question is ‘No’ – then that is the end of the matter. If the answer is ‘Yes’ or Very Likely’ then you must go on to consider if that personal
interest can be construed as being a prejudicial interest.
STEP TWO: DETERMINING IF YOUR INTEREST PREJUDICIAL?
A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest:
 where the well being, or financial position of you, your partner, members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association (people who
are more than just an acquaintance) are likely to be affected by the business of the meeting more than it would affect most people in the area.
 the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice
your judgement of the public interest.

2

FOR A NON PREJUDICIAL INTEREST

FOR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

YOU MUST
 Notify the governance officer
for the meeting as soon as you
realise you have an interest

YOU MUST
 Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you have a prejudicial interest (before or during
the meeting)

 Inform the meeting that you
have a personal interest and
the nature of the interest

 Inform the meeting that you have a prejudicial interest and the nature of the interest
 Fill in the declarations of interest form
 Leave the meeting while that item of business is discussed
 Make sure the interest is recorded on your annual register of interests form if it relates to you or your partner’s
business or financial affairs. If it is not on the Register update it within 28 days of the interest becoming apparent.

TO NOTE:
 You may remain in the room
and speak and vote on the
matter

YOU MUST NOT:
 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become aware of your disclosable pecuniary
interest during the meeting participate further in any discussion of the business,

Page 31

 Fill in the declarations of
interest form

 If your interest relates to a body
to which the GMCA has
appointed you to you only have
to inform the meeting of that
interest if you speak on the
matter.

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting

3

Page 32

4

Agenda Item 11

Greater Manchester Transport Committee

Date:

10 July 2020

Subject:

Transport Network Performance

Report of:

Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer, TfGM

PURPOSE OF REPORT
This report provides an overview of Transport Network Performance in Greater Manchester for
March to June 2020 during the Coronavirus pandemic.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Members are asked to note the contents of the report.

CONTACT OFFICERS:
Alex Cropper

Interim Head of Operations

Julie Flanagan

COO Sponsor and
Support Officer

Page 33

0161 244 1122
alex.cropper@tfgm.com
0161 244 1164
julie.flanagan@tfgm.com

Risk Management – not applicable
Legal Considerations – not applicable
Financial Consequences – Revenue – not applicable
Financial Consequences – Capital – not applicable
Number of attachments included in the report: 2
o Appendix A: Glossary
o Appendix B: Metrolink Performance

BACKGROUND PAPERS: Nil

TRACKING/PROCESS
Does this report relate to a major strategic decision, as set out in the
GMCA Constitution

No

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN
Are there any aspects in this report which
None
means it should be considered to be exempt
from call in by the relevant Scrutiny Committee
on the grounds of urgency?
GMTC
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Not applicable
Not applicable

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 34

2

02/07/2020 12:17

1.

OVERVIEW

1.1.

The Greater Manchester Transport Committee has a key role to oversee the provision of
transport services including the performance of Metrolink, Bus and Rail Operators and the
Strategic Highways Network on behalf of residents, businesses and visitors. The Committee
also oversees the move towards the Our Network vision for an integrated transport network
for Greater Manchester, as set out in the 2040 Transport Strategy.

1.2.

This network performance report covers performance across all transport modes in Greater
Manchester for March to June 2020 during the Coronavirus pandemic.

2.

OVERALL NETWORK PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

2.1.

Over the last four months Greater Manchester’s transport network has faced
unprecedented change because of the Covid-19 pandemic. Passenger numbers across all
modes dropped by 90 - 95% and vehicular traffic on our roads dropped by over 60%.

2.2.

Maintaining access to hospitals and other destination for key workers was the main focus
during the initial period where changes were often being made on a daily basis to ensure we
were able to maintain a coherent network.

2.3.

The detail contained later in this report covers the modal response and performance that
worked along some of the other key initiatives to support key workers and or essential
travel.

3.

NETWORK OVERVIEW
Events

3.1.

The transport network was impacted by the emerging consequences of the attempts to
contain the spread of the virus. The key timeline of related events is as follows:


16th March - Recommendation to work from home and avoid pubs/clubs



20th March – All schools, pubs, restaurants, gyms and other social venues closed



22nd and 29th March - Bus emergency timetables implemented - overall network
mileage reduced by 56% compared to pre-Covid levels with social distancing
capacity of around 20% on vehicles.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 35

3

02/07/2020 12:17

3.2.



22nd March - Metrolink Trafford Park Line opens



23rd March – Government lockdown announced for initial period of three weeks



23rd March – TOCs introduce emergency rail timetables featuring 50% services



23rd March - Metrolink reduces services to 12 min frequency



6th April - Metrolink reduces services to 20 min frequency



07th April – GMP Transport Unit redeployed to support the COVID response



10th May – Government adjusts messaging from “stay at home” to “be alert”



18th May - Amended train timetable implemented, 65% pre-Covid trains operating



18th May – GMP Transport Unit return to normal duties



26th May - Metrolink moves back to a 12-minute service Mon-Sat, 20 minutes on
Sunday all with 10pm finish



15th June – Non-essential shops begin to reopen



15th June – Face coverings mandatory on public transport



22nd June - Metrolink increases to a 10-minute frequency Mon-Fri 6am-7pm, Sat 8am6pm with an hour later operating hours (11pm Mon-Sat) and 20-minute frequency at
all other times.

Throughout the four-month period from March to June there has been minimal impact to
the transport network caused by inclement weather.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 36

4

02/07/2020 12:17

Metrolink
3.3.

Following the 16 March when Government advised the population against making nonessential trips as we entered the COVID-19 lockdown period, Metrolink patronage saw a
significant reduction in patronage to 5% of normal demand by the end of that month.

3.4.

On the 22 March, the new Trafford Park Metrolink line was launched as planned to support
journeys made by key workers and those who have no alternative but to use public
transport. It also maintained driver route knowledge as well as keeping the new
infrastructure operational for when people start to return to their normal journeys.

3.5.

On the 23 March Metrolink reduced the service frequency to 12 minutes across the network.
And following the significant reduction in patronage the services were reduced further on
the 6 April to a 20-minute frequency.

3.6.

To support essential workers during this time we lifted the concessionary restriction before
09:30 to accommodate new arrangements at supermarkets, and we provided free travel for
NHS staff. Where our service reduction impacted upon NHS shifts, we also provided
alternative travel for those key workers.

3.7.

Enhanced cleaning regimes were implemented to support customers and staff, and new
processes to support and deliver changes in line with the Government and Public Health
guidelines.

3.8.

During this time discussions commenced with the Department for Transport. Prior to
COVID-19, TfGM has always been operated without subsidy, using the farebox revenue
generated as a means to cover its operational and capital financing costs. Patronage drops
of 95% were mirrored by farebox revenue reductions of the same magnitude, equating to
estimated losses of £1.3 million per week.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 37

5

02/07/2020 12:17

3.9.

On 23 March 2020, DfT announced a second tranche of funding, equating to £13.3m, to
subsidise the operation of Metrolink for the period 12 May 2020 to 3 August 2020 (“the Light
Rail Revenue Restart Grant”). Overall, that equated to subsidy of £24.9m for the 20 week
period 17 March 2020 to 3 August 2020

3.10.

On 1 May 2020, DfT announced £11.6m of funding to subsidise the operation of Metrolink
for the 12 week period 17 March 2020 to 8 June 2020 (“the Light Rail Revenue Grant”).

3.11.

Through the Government Job Retention Scheme, Metrolink furloughed 328 staff (mainly
operator) to reflect the reduction in services required on the network.

3.12.

As the Government announced some relaxation of lockdown restrictions, Metrolink
scheduled a service increase which commenced on the 26 May. This offered a 12-minute
service Mon-Sat, 20 minutes Sunday with a 10pm last service increasing capacity by 26,000
spaces per hour. This was modelled to ensure that Metrolink could provide the capacity to
cater for the relaxations and accommodate 2m social distancing across the network.

3.13.

To further support customers returning to the network, social distancing guidelines were
installed across the network, all customer channels were updated and all Customer Service
Representatives (CSR) were brought back onto the network following a period of furlough.
Enhancements were also made at the depots and staff facilities to support Metrolink
workers and ensure that safe practises of working were implemented effectively in line with
each change.

3.14.

On the 15 June face coverings became mandatory on public transport and staff were briefed
to engage with customers to educate and encourage the use whilst travelling on the
network. We supported the uptake of face coverings by joining with our Interchange
colleagues to supply face coverings for the first few days of the change. TfGM also launched
an exemption card to support those customers who are not required to wear a face covering.

3.15.

In addition to the campaign launched to encourage contact free ticketing (aimed to reduce
contact with assets on the network), we also took the opportunity to launch products which
would support the change in essential travel patterns for customers who no longer commute
daily. The new Clipper product was launched on the 15 June alongside campaigns targeted
at school children to use pre-loaded products on their Igo and Our Pass products. We also
promoted the use of the Early Bird product to alleviate the busier service hours.

3.16.

During COVID-19 we saw a significant shift in line and peak demand profiles. Pre COVID-19
patronage was weighted towards the Altrincham and Bury lines. During the COVID-19
period, this moved towards the Oldham / Rochdale line. Employment types and the ability
to work from home are estimated to be the primary factor influencing this shift.

3.17.

After modelling the anticipated increase for non-essential retail demand and leisure sectors,
a further service increase was implemented to ensure we can continue to deliver capacity
in line with growing demand in the context of social distancing, within the available fleet.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 38

6

02/07/2020 12:17

3.18.

On the 22 June we commenced a 10-minute service frequency Mon-Fri 0600-1900, Sat 08001800 and 20 minutes at all other times. Service times were extended to 11pm Mon-Sat.
This service offers a significant number of double trams across the network aid social
distancing to allow for this capacity to be flexible as the demand profile changes during
recovery.

3.19.

We will continue to monitor services and model the impact of the next stages of recovery.
Rail

3.20.

Rail patronage fell following the 16 March government announcement advising the
population against making non-essential trips and to work from home, wherever possible.
Patronage fell to between 5 – 10% of normal levels once the COVID-19 lockdown was
introduced on 23 March.

3.21.

Emergency timetables were implemented by TOCs from 23 March, with a key worker
skeleton train service operating on key routes between 0700 – 2100hrs. The timetables saw
greatly reduced rail services to around 50% of normal levels, reflecting the significant
reduction in rail demand but maintaining services for essential workers.

3.22.

Throughout the period, TfGM engaged with TOCs and key stakeholders, such as the NHS, to
ensure services reflected the travel needs of their staff. TfGM arranged free travel for NHS
staff on Metrolink services and V1/V2 buses from Salford to Manchester Central Hospitals
and rail ticket acceptance for all passengers on cross-city and Ashton trams. Earlier trains
and additional station calls were implemented after TfGM intervention.

3.23.

Patronage on rail has remained low and stable, with daily footfall figures at Manchester
Piccadilly around 5-10% of normal levels. Rail services have largely operated well within
social distancing capacity, with Northern’s busiest trains averaging around 30 passengers.
As a result of the low levels of patronage and reduction in train congestion, performance
has significantly improved, with average daily PPM figures for Northern and TPE around 95%
and CaSL figures around 2%.

3.24.

An amended train plan was introduced on 18 May, which saw re-instated services, additional
strengthening and increases in capacity, although patronage levels on Northern and TPE
services remained unchanged and rail demand remained low across the network.

3.25.

The below graph outlines the changes in Manchester Piccadilly footfall throughout the
period of lockdown, showing that it is currently +20% of normal operations.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 39

7

02/07/2020 12:17

3.26.

To further support rail passengers returning to the network, social distancing guidelines
were installed across the network, leading to a reduction in capacity to around 15% of
normal levels. Controlled access, signage and social distancing measures were installed at
stations and on-board trains.

3.27.

Patronage levels throughout this period have remained broadly stable, although some
services, notably Manchester – Liverpool and seaside services to Blackpool North, have seen
rises resulting in social distancing capacity being breached. TfGM continues to monitor
passenger service levels and footfall levels across all city centre stations alongside TOCs and
Network Rail.

3.28.

With around 65% of services in operation across the network, performance remains good
with TOCs operating above 95% PPM and CaSL below 2%. On 20 May a line side fire at
Earlestown disrupted services along the Chat Moss line, resulting in its closure. This
significantly affected services between Liverpool and Manchester.

3.29.

On the 15 June face coverings became mandatory on public transport; compliance on rail is
at around 80 - 90%
Bus

3.30.

During the lockdown period patronage on bus services reduced by around 90% however a
core network continued to operate in recognition that bus plays a vital role in providing
journeys to designated key workers and others who need to make essential journeys.

3.31.

To support operators to provide necessary services, a package of financial support was
announced by Government, and interim arrangements for operator payments put in place
by TfGM.

3.32.

In line with network changes made by commercial operators, TfGM officers reviewed the
provision of subsidised bus services and changes were made using the emergency delegation
powers set out in the GMCA constitution. Overarching principles were established to ensure

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 40

8

02/07/2020 12:17

access to hospitals and food retailers was maintained, as well as a more general level of
coverage for other essential travel.
3.33.

During the lockdown period, several bus operators implemented ‘no-change’ policies on
their buses and encouraged the use of SMART and mobile app ticketing, in order to reduce
the amount of physical contact between customers and drivers. TfGM helped to
communicate these changes to customers by sharing content on social media.

3.34.

A range of other measures were also introduced by operators to protect passengers and
drivers including enhancing the driver’s protective screen, taping off or marking seats not to
be taken, discouraging passengers from sitting close to the driver’s cab, greater use of
double deckers to support social distancing, and enhanced cleaning regimes.

3.35.

Service levels were restored to between 70 and 80% of pre-COVID levels from early June
with usage closely monitored. The use of duplicate services by some operators is helping to
manage the impact of the capacity constraints on vehicles due to social distancing. The
majority of subsidised services are also now reinstated.

3.36.

Passenger counting software has been added to some ticket machines and feeds
information to Apps and operator websites and enables passengers to understand the level
of capacity on their service prior to starting their journey. Operators have also started using
‘Bus Full’ signs on their destination blinds when social distancing capacities have been
reached.

3.37.

Schools services were reduced during lockdown with only 5% of pre-Covid provision
remaining in operation for the children of key workers. Some services were reinstated from
15th June for those children returning to school and the situation remains under constant
review.
Highways

3.38.

Although traffic volumes were slightly lower than usual during the week commencing 16
March, it wasn’t until the week commencing 23 March that GM roads saw the dramatic
decrease in the volume of traffic on the network. The seven-day low during the last four
months was during the week commencing 30 March when there was 68% less traffic on the
road within the Regional centre compared with typical and 62% less private vehicle trips
across GM when compared with typical.

3.39.

Since this low, traffic has grown steadily week on week with some more significant growth
around the opening of non-essential retail on 15 June. While traffic volumes are increasing,
they remain significantly below typical. Average weekly traffic volumes in the Regional
Centre and GM at the end of June were approximately a third and a quarter lower than
typical respectively.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 41

9

02/07/2020 12:17

3.40.

With the increase in traffic post 15 June we have seen the return of recurrent congestion at
known pinch points and at major scheme and roadwork sites including Great Ancoats Street,
Hyde Road and the A56 in Trafford.

3.41.

Whilst there was a reduction in the overall traffic volumes there was a corresponding
increase in the percentage of vehicles traveling above the speed limit and ACPO guidelines.
Additionally, whilst prior to lockdown incidents of speeding were often confined to late at
night and the early hours in the first month of lockdown a substantial proportion of vehicles
were travelling above the speed limit throughout the day.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 42

10

02/07/2020 12:17

3.42.

During the period between the end of March and April both GMP and Safer Roads Greater
Manchester led campaigns to remind drivers to drive safely and protect the NHS. This
included press briefings from GMP’s Chief Constable, Ian Hopkins that received both local
and national media coverage.

3.43.

Safer Roads Greater Manchester and GMP have been working together to analyse the
information associated with the speeding vehicles and to assist GMP in the targeting of
operational activity. TfGM’s network of Variable Message Signs (VMS) were also utilised to
enforce the message for drivers to watch their speed.

3.44.

The return of non-essential retail saw footfall in the regional centre increase last week. The
number of pedestrian movements captured by sensors within the inner ring road on
Saturday 20 June was 42% above the previous Saturday (13 June). However, while footfall
in the Regional Centre is increasing, pedestrian movements remained 77% below levels from
early March on average last week. There is less information available for district and other
local centres, but anecdotal evidence suggests that more people have stayed ‘local’. Funding
has been made available to enable social distancing whilst walking and cycling and districts
have implemented widened pavements and pop-up cycle facilities.

3.45.

Pedestrian activity on off road routes (including canal tow paths, parks and traffic free
routes) remains high and is currently double pre lockdown levels.

3.46.

The reduction in traffic on our roads together with clement weather has encouraged a largescale increase in cycling activity with it being 22% above the annual average at the end of
June (having peaked at 69% above the annual average). This increase is particularly true of
cycling on local streets and traffic free cycle routes many of which have seen a threefold
increase in cycling from pre lockdown levels.

3.47.

There is growing evidence of the return of cycling for commuting and whilst much of the
growth in cycling is driven by cycling on neighbourhood street and off-road routes there is a
recognised route from cycling for exercise and leisure to cycling for utility trips such as
shopping and commuting.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 43

11

02/07/2020 12:17

Bus Stations and Interchanges
3.48.

Following the Government's announcement of an initial three-week lock down, on the 30
March, TfGM made the decision to reduce the operational hours of its bus stations and
interchanges (08:00 – 16:00 Monday to Saturday, unstaffed on Sundays) and temporarily
close all travelshops except for those at Altrincham and Eccles. Under the Governments
furlough scheme 64 front line staff were furloughed.

3.49.

During the lock down period, significant work has been undertaken comprising;
implementation of social distancing signage and customer information notices, introduction
of enhanced cleaning regimes and monthly santisation programs and the provision of hand
sanitisation units for use by the general public, across all bus stations and interchanges.

3.50.

On the 8 June, in readiness for the re-opening of retail sector on the 15 June, all travelshops
re-opened but with reduced staff numbers and limited opening hours (08:30 –16:00 Monday
to Saturday). Since re-opening travelshop, demand has been well below pre Covid levels.
Subsequently, there is no immediate plan to increase opening hours and as such 26 staff
remain furloughed.

3.51.

As referenced with the Metrolink paragraphs above, to encourage and support the use of
face coverings whilst traveling on public transport, staff on bus stations/interchanges
proactively distributed face coverings to customers and passengers. This activity continues,
with customers/passengers now directed to Travelshops should they require a face
covering.

3.52.

In readiness for the further relaxation in lock down arrangements on the 4th July, on the 29
June staffing hours on bus station increased to 07:00 – 21:00 Monday to Saturday but

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 44

12

02/07/2020 12:17

remained unstaffed on Sundays. With effect from Monday 6 July, pre Covid staffing
arrangements will be reinstated, i.e. 07:00 – 23:00 Monday to Saturday, 11:00 – 16:30 on
Sundays.
Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB)
3.53.

Across March, there was a decrease in the number of reported incidents of crime and ASB
on public transport. With the overall rate of incidents (per million passenger journeys)
reducing from 29 during the 12 months to March 2019, to 25 during the 12 months to March
2020. However, proportionately, there was a large increase on Metrolink during the COVID
period.

3.54.

Formal TravelSafe governance arrangements were paused as the lockdown commenced and
Partnership activities, such as school engagement and joint deployments, also ceased. The
GMP Transport Unit were re-deployed to support wider Covid-19 duties. To manage this,
TravelSafe interfaced into relevant COVID structures, such as the GM Compliance Cell,
ensuring ongoing monitoring/escalation of issues. Due to increasing reports associated with
homelessness individuals, TravelSafe also joined the Manchester Street Engagement weekly
call to feed in intelligence/identify potential mitigation measures.

3.55.

In April, the number of reported incidents of crime and ASB on the public transport network
reduced again, this reduction was not, however, as great as the reduction in patronage. In
the absence of the GMP Transport Unit some network coverage was secured through GMP
Specialist Operations, and Operation Servator deployments, providing reassurance at key
transport hubs throughout April which was appreciated.

3.56.

May saw an increase in the number of reported incidents of crime and ASB on the public
transport network compared to April and March 2020. However, this still reflects an overall
reduction in numbers based on year to year comparisons.

3.57.

TravelSafe governance structures were re-launched in full during May. Initial tactical
priorities identified as Manchester City Centre, the summer period and the Oldham and
Rochdale Line, however these priorities will remain agile given current challenges around
data and the uncertainty of the impacts arising from ease of lockdown.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 45

13

02/07/2020 12:17

4.

NETWORK PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

Metrolink1

Status

Target

Achieved

Trend

Metrolink Punctuality

G

90%

94.9%

I

Metrolink Reliability

G

99%

99.57%

I

Status

Target

Achieved

Trend

Northern Punctuality (PPM)

G

86.0%

95.8%

I

Northern Reliability (CaSL)

G

N/A

0.5%

I

Northern Right Time

G

N/A

83.9%

I

TPE Punctuality (PPM)

G

82.3%

94.3%

I

TPE Reliability (CaSL)

G

N/A

3.8%

I

TPE Right Time

G

N/A

81.1%

I

Network Rail Delay Minutes

G

32,521

7,425

I

Status

Target

Achieved

Trend

Network Bus Service Reliability

G

97.0%

98.2%

I

Commercial Bus Service Reliability

G

97.0%

98.0%

I

Subsidised Bus Service Reliability

G

97.0%

99.2%

I

Network Bus Overall Punctuality

G

80.0%

86.7%

I

Commercial Bus Overall Punctuality

G

80.0%

86.7%

I

Subsidised Bus Overall Punctuality

G

80.0%

87.3%

I

Network Bus Regularity

R

97.0%

96.1%

S

Commercial Bus Regularity

R

97.0%

96.1%

S

Subsidised Bus Regularity

n/a

97.0%

n/a

n/a

Status

Target

Achieved

Trend

Highways Journey Time Reliability

G

90.0%

91.3%

I

Highways Level of Delay (Average)

G

30.0%

24.7%

I

Status

Predicted

Actual

Trend

R

560

683

I

Rail1

Bus2

Highways2

Network Safety
Killed and Seriously Injured (rolling 12m to Aug ‘19)
See Appendix A for glossary.
Reporting Periods: This report covers March to June 2020
Trend key: W = Worsening, S= Stable, I = Improving

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 46

14

02/07/2020 12:17

APPENDIX A
Glossary
Measure

Description

Metrolink Punctuality

Percentage of trams departing GREEN if equal to or above
less than two minutes late.
90%
RED if less than 90%.

Metrolink Reliability

Percentage of planned miles
operated.

Northern Punctuality (PPM)

Northern Reliability (CaSL)

TPE Reliability (CaSL)

TPE Punctuality (PPM)

Northern Right Time

TPE Right Time

RAG thresholds

Target for 2019 is 99%.
RED if less than 97%.
AMBER if 99% - 97%.
GREEN if 99% or above.
PPM = Public Performance
GREEN if equal to or above
Measure. The percentage of
the target.
services arriving at destination RED if below target.
(having called at all scheduled
stops) within 5 minutes of the
planned arrival time.
CaSL= Cancelled and
RED if above target.
Significant Lateness. % of
AMBER if equal to target.
services part/fully cancelled or GREEN if below target.
arriving at their destination
later than 30 minutes after
scheduled arrival time.
CaSL= Cancelled and
RED if above target.
Significant Lateness. % of
AMBER if equal to target.
services part/fully cancelled or GREEN if below target.
arriving at their destination
later than 30 minutes after
scheduled arrival time.
PPM = Public Performance
GREEN if equal or above the
Measure. The percentage of
target.
services arriving at destination RED if below target.
(having called at all scheduled
stops) within 10 minutes of
the planned arrival time.
% of recorded station stops
RED if above target.
where the train arrived less
AMBER if equal to target.
than one minute later than its GREEN if below target.
advertised time.
% of recorded station stops
RED if above target.
where the train arrived less
AMBER if equal to target.
than one minute later than its GREEN if below target.
advertised time.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 47

15

02/07/2020 12:17

Measure

Description

RAG thresholds

Network Rail Delay Minutes

Total number of Delay
minutes attributable to
Network Rail.

GREEN if equal to or below
the target.
RED if above target.

Bus Service Reliability

Scheduled Service Reliability –
measured by the percentage
of observed bus departures
from a given location
compared to the service
provision promised to the
public.
Scheduled Service Punctuality
– measured by the percentage
of ‘on-time’ observed bus
departures from a given
location. The definition of an
on-time departure is one
which is between 60 seconds
early and 5 minutes and 59
seconds late, inclusive.
Frequent Service Regularity –
measured by the percentage
of occasions where the gap
between services is either
over 2 times the service
headway, or 10 minutes,
whichever is the larger
number. Service Regularity
encapsulates both the
reliability and punctuality
aspect of a frequent service.
% of highway journeys
completed within an
‘acceptable journey time’,
defined as the typical journey
time +25%.
The difference between the
typical journey time (median)
and the optimum journey
time (5th percentile) during
the peak period.
Number of people killed or
seriously injured on GM roads.

GREEN if equal to or above
the target.
RED if below target.

Bus Overall Punctuality

Bus Regularity

Highways Journey Time
Reliability (JTR)

Highways Level of Delay
(Average)

Killed & Seriously Injured (KSI)

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 48

16

GREEN if equal to or above
the target.
RED if below target.

GREEN if equal to or above
the target.
RED if below target.

GREEN > = 90%
AMBER 80-90%
RED < 80%

GREEN < 30%
AMBER 30-50%
RED >= 50%

GREEN if equal to or below
the annual forecast
projection.
RED if above forecast.
02/07/2020 12:17

Measure

Description

RAG thresholds
(DfT developed a forecast for
KSI casualties, as part of the
Road Safety Strategy. This
forecast (based on a central
projection) was for a 40%
reduction in KSI casualties by
2020 against a 2005-09
baseline. For GM this was no
more than 550 KSI per year
casualties by 2020.)

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Performance [Title]

Page 49

17

02/07/2020 12:17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

Greater Manchester Transport Committee

Date:

10 July 2020

Subject:

Transport Supporting Greater Manchester’s Recovery

Report of:

Stephen Rhodes, Customer Director, TfGM

PURPOSE OF REPORT
This report provides an update on the approach to planning how transport can help Greater
Manchester’s recovery from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
Members are asked to note, comment as appropriate and endorse the approach to recovery
planning being undertaken by TfGM.
CONTACT OFFICERS:
Stephen Rhodes

Customer Director

Nicola Kane

Head of Strategic Planning, nicola.kane@tfgm.com
Insight and Innovation

James Baldwin

Senior Policy Officer

Page 51

stephen.rhodes@tfgm.com

james.baldwin@tfgm.com

Risk Management – not applicable
Legal Considerations – not applicable
Financial Consequences – Revenue – not applicable
Financial Consequences – Capital – not applicable
Number of attachments included in the report: not applicable
BACKGROUND PAPERS:

GMTC 20200710 Transport Network Report

TRACKING/PROCESS
Does this report relate to a major strategic decision, as set out in the
GMCA Constitution?

No

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN
Are there any aspects in this report which
None
means it should be considered to be exempt
from call in by the relevant Scrutiny Committee
on the grounds of urgency?
GMTC
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Not applicable
Not applicable

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

Page 52

2

02/07/2020 11:00

1

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The effects of Covid-19 will be profound; affecting everyone, every community and every
business, voluntary organisation and public service in different ways.

1.2

Some impacts are apparent now, although their long-term effects are unclear: schooling
and education services disrupted for nearly 500,000 children and young people in GM; over
half of the city-region’s businesses have furloughed staff; travel demand has plummeted.
Other social, environmental and economic impacts and their wider effects will emerge over
time.

1.3

Transport will be central to Greater Manchester’s recovery, both in the role public
transport plays in moving people around and in the form of long-term transport
infrastructure development as a low-carbon economic stimulus.

1.4

This report sets out the approach TfGM is taking to plan how transport can support Greater
Manchester to not only address the adverse impacts of Covid-19, but to ‘build back better’
by developing a fairer society, leading to better jobs and greater prosperity for all, and
avoiding creating new types of inequality or increasing existing disadvantage.

2

GREATER MANCHESTER’S RECOVERY PLAN

2.1

Greater Manchester is developing a Recovery Plan1, that looks to bring together all the key
public agencies with the business community, social enterprises and local communities in
a common endeavour.

2.2

The Plan is structured over three broad phases, which run concurrently to begin with, with
some estimated timeframes:


Release of lockdown (0 - 2 months)



Living with Covid (0 - 12 months)



Building back better (0 - beyond 12months)

2.3

It is recognised that these timeframes will not be discrete from one another, and there will
be significant ‘blurring’ between timescales and phases, and that multiple phases are likely
to be operational at once.

2.4

There is a key role for transport through all of these phases. This will require the careful coordination of a range of transport services to respond to travel demand and provide safe
and effective transport in support of the GM recovery. Investment and renewal of transport

1

https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=3942&Ver=4

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

3

Page 53

02/07/2020 11:00

infrastructure, services and fleets will also be important to recovery, not least in terms of
the economic stimulus effects.
3

TRANSPORT RECOVERY CHALLENGES

3.1

There are a number of immediate challenges for public transport which will need to be
considered and addressed as part of the recovery planning process.

3.2

Social distancing restrictions meant that for a significant part of the lockdown period
Government guidance was that people should avoid all but essential travel, and where
travel was necessary, people should avoid using public transport and consider walking,
cycling or driving instead.

3.3

Patronage levels on Greater Manchester’s trams, trains and buses have plummeted as a
result, impacting on the financial sustainability of the network and requiring Government
subsidy to protect core services for key workers.

3.4

Metrolink patronage, for example, reduced significantly following lockdown and
subsequently ‘stabilised’ at approximately 5% of pre Covid-19 levels. The significantly
reduced levels of farebox revenues resulted in monthly deficits (after financing costs) of
c.£5.3 million. This deficit has been mitigated, in part, through grants from Department of
Transport (DfT), with TfGM required to submit revenue and cost breakdowns, which,
subject to review and scrutiny, will then be used to adjust and pay the allocated funding
accordingly. This arrangement is in place until 3rd August 2020.

3.5

Metrolink passenger numbers have since increased to c 10% - 15% of pre-Covid levels
following the ‘easing’ of Lockdown restrictions, but intelligence suggests that the pandemic
has had an impact on attitudes towards the future use of public transport. According to a
recent survey conducted by Transport Focus2, 32% of public transport users say that they
won’t use public transport again for any reason until they feel safe to do so. TfGM’s own
survey found that half of workers think, once travel restrictions ease, they will change their
commute frequency, with train and tram commuter frequency the least likely to return to
normal. Only 56% of those who did commute by tram for five or more days a week intend
to travel the same way and with the same frequency.

3.6

Transport Focus’ survey also found that whilst some people were planning to walk (45%)
or cycle (26%) for trips they previously made by public transport, others say that in the
future they are more likely to drive for such trips.

3.7

Ultimately this intelligence suggests it is unlikely that public transport patronage and
revenues will return to their pre-Covid-19 levels in the short or medium term, and so there
will be a requirement for continuing, likely significant, public sector financial support in GM
and elsewhere, from a combination of both local and national funds.

3.8

Financial sustainability will be a challenge for all of Greater Manchester’s local authorities
with the cost of the impact of the virus predicted to rise to c£732m by the end of 2020/21

2

https://www.transportfocus.org.uk/research-publications/publications/travel-during-covid-19-survey-week-8

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

Page 54

4

02/07/2020 11:00

alone. This is made up of the additional cost of £236m to respond to the crisis together
with lost revenues of £496m3.
4

PHASES ONE AND TWO – RELEASE OF LOCKDOWN AND LIVING WITH COVID

4.1

The easement of lockdown restrictions is already underway with some children returning
to school and non-essential retail allowed to open from the 15th June. From the 4th July
sectors including pubs, restaurants, hairdressers, and hotels will also be allowed to open,
subject to subject to social distancing and ‘Covid-secure’ practices. Looking ahead, the start
of the academic year is likely to induce further travel demand as children and students
return to education, allowing parents and carers to return to work.

4.2

TfGM has been working with businesses, local authorities, schools and other sectors to
manage the demand as Greater Manchester ‘re-opens’ and to help inform operational
planning. The Transport Network Report, also to be considered by this meeting of the GM
Transport Committee, sets out some of the immediate operational activity to respond to
the rise in travel demand.

4.3

Given how social distancing policies have reduced the volumes that public transport can
safely carry, it is important that we also consider how broader policies can be implemented
to support and enable changes in working patterns, home working and flexible working.

4.4

Work is therefore already underway to develop a range of travel demand initiatives and
the new Metrolink Clipper card was launched in June to support more flexible working and
travel.

4.5

TfGM’s recent Covid-19 Travel Survey indicates that many workers are already intending to
change their pre-Covid commuting habits once travel restrictions ease, with many
intending to commute less and work from home more.

4.6

Due to limited resources, adopting an intelligence led approach to decision making is more
important than ever. Not only is travel behaviour likely to change, the needs and
requirements will be different by people and place and that will need to be reflected in our
approach.

4.7

TfGM is continuing to work collaboratively with partners including the GM Chamber of
Commerce, other business groups, agencies and citizens to effectively manage supply and
demand and develop wrap around mobility solutions to support places to function and
people to get to where they need to be.

5

PHASE 3 – BUILDING BACK BETTER

5.1

Greater Manchester had embarked on an ambitious journey to transform transport for the
city-region in the interests of the environment, economy and development of GM. Whilst

3

https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=4054&Ver=4

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

5

Page 55

02/07/2020 11:00

Covid-19 will result in new challenges for GM, it will also exacerbate many existing chronic
stresses and may, in the longer term, threaten to disrupt progress in achieving existing local
objectives, such as Clean Air and our 2038 carbon neutral mission.
5.2

Whilst we need to consider our proposals in light of new circumstances, this does not mean
we need to go back to the drawing board. Key objectives like clean air and a decarbonised
transport system still need to be achieved, arguably more quickly than ever. But others will
require reflection in light of the impacts of Covid-19. This is not just about getting our
transport network back to how it was pre-Covid, but to build back better across the whole
system.

5.3

To do this, we need to make sure we have an integrated programme of activity, not just
across the transport network but across the GM economy – so transport supports the wider
recovery effort.

6

SCENARIO PLANNING

6.1

TfGM’s medium to longer term transport recovery planning, both in terms of living with
Covid and building back better, is informed by intelligence and research on future travel
behaviour and planning for a range of scenarios. TfGM has developed a framework and
process for recovery activity to identify and prioritise medium to longer term key issues, to
consider the impact of Covid-19 on travel supply and demand, using scenario planning as a
tool.

6.2

The four scenarios currently informing the planning process are summarised as follows:


Scenario 1: Back towards normality – stronger economic recovery, little change in
public attitudes



Scenario 2: New travel demand – stronger economic recovery, big changes in public
attitudes



Scenario 3: Car travel dominant – weaker economic recovery, little change in public
attitudes



Scenario 4: Poorer and more local – weaker economic recovery, big changes in
public attitudes.

6.3

This set of future scenarios has been developed to assess the various potential impacts of
Covid-19 on travel in the future. These scenarios are being used to determine how GM will
respond to the key issues relating to Covid-19 across all aspects of transport including
strategic programmes such as Infrastructure Investment Plans, Bus Reform and Clean Air.

6.4

To support the scenario planning, TfGM is gathering intelligence around how travel
demand is changing as lockdown is released. This will continue to allow the variables that
drive demand to be understood (e.g. pace of economic recovery, government policy,
consumer confidence, attitudes to technology, environment and travel modes), and where
possible, influence.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

Page 56

6

02/07/2020 11:00

6.5

This Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 is a ‘vision-led adaptive planning
approach’ to transport decision-making. It replaces the traditional transport planning
approach of ‘predict and provide’ with one that aims to shape travel to support the type of
city-region that people want to live and work in. Greater Manchester’s transport vision –
the 2040 Right Mix - entails zero net growth in motor vehicle traffic in Greater Manchester
between 2017 and 2040 and a reduction in the car mode share of trips from 61% to no
more than 50%. Scenario planning will be used to inform decisions on how the pathway to
the 2040 Right Mix may need to be adjusted in a post-Covid-19 world, and on the
robustness of interventions in the draft Delivery Plan to the new post-Covid-19 situation.

7

IMPACT ON GREATER MANCHESTER’S STRATEGIC TRANSPORT PRIORITIES

7.1

A number of Greater Manchester’s key transport programmes have been delayed or
impacted by Covid-19 and the need to focus resource on responding to immediate
challenges in what has been and continues to be a dynamic and fast changing environment.
There is also a need to review and re-evaluate Greater Manchester’s strategic transport
priorities in light of the new circumstances in which we find ourselves.
Greater Manchester Transport Strategy Delivery Plan

7.2

The Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 is accompanied by a series of 5-year
delivery plans, which set out the city-region’s short, medium and long term transport
delivery priorities.

7.3

A new five-year Delivery Plan (2020–2025) will be published later this year, alongside the
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. It will include an appended Local Implementation
Plan for each Greater Manchester Local Authority, summarising the key priorities,
interventions and desired outcomes for each district.

7.4

The refreshed document will also reference more recent developments, including: Clean
Air Plan proposals, the Mayor’s Our Network vision for a more integrated, sustainable
transport network and details of Streets for All schemes, including updates on supporting
public transport and Active Travel provision. The interventions within the Delivery Plan are
also being refined to deliver local economic stimulus and support the wider GM recovery
plan, forming a prioritised pipeline of transport schemes to secure national support in
future funding opportunities. These will also undergo a carbon assessment to ensure their
consistency with the objectives of the GM Environment Plan.
Bus Reform

7.5

A public consultation on a proposed bus franchising scheme for Greater Manchester ran
from 14 October 2019 to 8 January 2020. In total over 8,500 people and organisations from
across GM and beyond took part.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

7

Page 57

02/07/2020 11:00

7.6

TfGM and independent research agency Ipsos MORI have reviewed, analysed and
summarised all responses to the consultation in two reports. Ipsos MORI have also
analysed the responses from focus groups of public transport users, non-users, residents
and businesses. The GMCA noted the contents of these reports at its meeting on Friday 26
June.

7.7

The coronavirus pandemic has had a widespread impact on the bus market, including
changes to services and passenger numbers, attitudes to public transport and financial and
wider economic issues. Before any final decision on franchising may reasonably be taken,
consideration needs to be given to the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic on the bus
market in GM.

7.8

Further work is now being undertaken by TfGM to consider the potential impact and effects
of Covid-19 on the bus market and in due course, a report detailing this work will be
prepared by TfGM. This report will be submitted to GMCA so that these impacts can be
considered, along with the next steps in the bus reform process.
Clean Air

7.9

The coronavirus pandemic has seen air pollution levels drop by 30% and road traffic
volumes fall by as much as 52% across Greater Manchester as a result of the lockdown –
and at the same time cycling journeys have increased by 42%. However, it is likely that
these air pollution levels will rise as restrictions are lifted, so the government have
confirmed there is still the need to take action.

7.10

To give businesses across the city-region the support they need to prepare for the
introduction of a Greater Manchester-wide Clean Air Zone as directed by Government, the
Mayor is calling on ministers to financially support the city-region’s plans to rebuild the
economy in an environmentally sustainable way.

7.11

The financial package would enable Greater Manchester businesses and transport
operators to make the shift to cleaner vans, lorries, buses taxis and private hire vehicles.

7.12

The ask of ministers is made up of:


£98m for a Clean Commercial Vehicle Fund for vans, HGVs, coaches and minibuses
(increased from £59m).



£16m for a Clean Bus Fund to support retrofit of the existing bus fleet. (Greater
Manchester is also working with Government on additional funding for the
replacement of vehicles that can’t be retrofitted with new, cleaner vehicles.)



A £32m Clean Taxi Fund for taxi and private hire drivers and operators to switch to
cleaner vehicles.



A new £10m hardship fund – dedicated to small businesses and sole traders who
could face additional financial concerns to help them switch to compliant vehicles.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

Page 58

8

02/07/2020 11:00



Funding for new electric vehicle charging points, doubling the size of the existing
Greater Manchester publicly owned charging network, and for up to 600 electric
buses by the mid-2020s. (This investment would come from sources other than
Government Clean Air Plan core funding).

7.13

To date the Government has confirmed £41m for clean vehicle funds to award grants or
loans to eligible businesses in Greater Manchester (£15.4m for bus retrofit, £10.7m for
PHVs, £8m for HGVs, £4.6m for coaches and £2.1m for minibuses). This is out of a total
clean vehicles funding request of at least £166m.

7.14

Greater Manchester local authorities intend to consult on proposed taxi and private hire
minimum licensing standards alongside the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan
consultation, including a roadmap to when taxi and private hire fleets should be zeroemission capable.

7.15

The GMCA announced in May that plans to hold a statutory public consultation on the
Clean Air Plan had been postponed due to the coronavirus pandemic. The consultation will
now be held as soon as is feasible. The delay to the consultation also means that the
introduction of the Clean Air Zone has been moved back to 2022.
Cycling and Walking Programme

7.16

Greater Manchester has been leading the way with plans to build the largest walking and
cycling network in the UK to support a shift to more active, healthy and sustainable travel.

7.17

Since social distancing measures have been in place, walking and cycling have played a
bigger role for essential journeys and exercise. Based on comparison with pre-lockdown
data, cycling is up by 22% and, together, walking and cycling are estimated to currently
account for approximately 33% of GM journeys.

7.18

Active travel is, therefore, at the heart of Greater Manchester’s ambition to build back
better to secure more walking and cycling as a positive legacy of lockdown and to mitigate
against a bounce back to greater reliance on car travel and increases in congestion, poor
air quality and carbon emissions.

7.19

In the short term local authorities are also putting in place a number of temporary
measures to give pedestrians and cyclists more space to make them safer when travelling
as part of Greater Manchester’s ‘Safe Streets. Save Lives’ campaign. £5 million of
emergency funding has been made available to local authorities through the Mayor’s
Challenge Fund to support measures. In addition, the Government has allocated
£15,872,000 to GMCA for emergency active travel measures.

7.20

In the longer term, the walking and cycling programme will be assessed for opportunities
to accelerate and bring forward interventions to encourage behaviour change and ensure
walking and cycling are viewed as viable alternatives to car travel.

GMTC 20200710 Transport Supporting Greater
Manchester’s Recovery [Title]

9

Page 59

02/07/2020 11:00

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

ITEM NO
GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

Date:

10th July 2020

Subject:

Forthcoming Changes to the Bus Network – Part A

Report of:

Alison Chew, Interim Head of Bus Services, TfGM

PURPOSE OF REPORT
i.

To inform Members of the changes that have taken place to the bus network since the last
Greater Manchester Transport Committee meeting, in addition to report on consequential
action taken or proposed by Transport for Greater Manchester; and

ii.

To seek guidance from Members on proposed Transport for Greater Manchester action.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Members are asked to:
1.

note and comment as appropriate on the changes to the commercial network and the
proposals not to replace the de-registered commercial services as set out in Annex A;

2.

agree that no action is taken in respect of changes or de-registered commercial services as
set out in Annex A;

3.

approve the proposed action taken in respect of changes or de-registered commercial
services as set out in Annex B; and

4.

approve the proposed changes to general subsidised services set out in Annex C.

5.

note and approve the emergency changes to general subsidised services set out in Annex D.

Page 61

CONTACT OFFICERS:
Alison Chew

Interim Head of Bus Services

0161 244 1726
alison.chew@tfgm.com

Nick Roberts

Head of Services &
Commercial Development

0161 244 1173
nick.roberts@tfgm.com

Equalities Implications – n/a
Climate Change Impact Assessment and Mitigation Measures – n/a
Risk Management – n/a
Legal Considerations – n/a
Financial Consequences – Revenue – see paragraph 2 and Part B report
Financial Consequences – Capital – n/a
Number of attachments included in the report: main report only

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
o Forthcoming Changes to the Bus Network report to the Greater Manchester Transport Committee,
8 April 2020

TRACKING/PROCESS
Does this report relate to a major strategic decision, as set out in the
GMCA Constitution

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN
Are there any aspects in this report which
n/a
means it should be considered to be exempt
from call in by the relevant Scrutiny Committee
on the grounds of urgency?
GM Transport Committee
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
n/a
n/a

Page 62

No

1.

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND

1.1

The Transport Committee considers all matters relating to the operation and service
performance of the bus network in Greater Manchester, including commercially registered
and subsidised services; Demand Responsive Services, bus stations and bus stops;
passenger information services; contract monitoring; vehicle standards; and passenger
safety for the subsidised bus network.

1.2

Acting under delegated authority, the Transport Committee is tasked to review closely and
approve all proposed changes to the subsidised bus network and ensure that the cost of
the subsidised general services is kept within the appropriate budget or any cash limits.
This is achieved through:

rationalisation of existing services whilst maintaining key links on the network;



engaging with operators with the objective of them taking on “marginal
commercial” services; and



continuing to redesign and restructure grouped services to ensure that maximum
value is obtained from subsidy.

1.3

In general, withdrawals, reductions or amendments to services are currently only planned
at the date of next renewal of the contract concerned and proposed changes will be
reported to this Committee.

1.4

The governance process that leads up to the reporting to the Transport Committee involves
the scrutiny of all tendered services at TfGM’s Tender Panel that consists of representatives
from Legal, Procurement and Finance as well as TfGM’s Operational Service Planning and
Network Performance departments.

Page 63

2.

2020/21 BUDGET SUMMARY

2.1

The summary provides the current position on the 2020/21 Subsidised Bus Services budget
for two months to 31st May 2020. This budget is currently prepared on a Quarterly basis.
This is an updated budget following a review in light of COVID-19 and reflects a reduction
in income due to lower On Bus revenue particularly on Schools Services. The actual income
is circa £0.5m below the original budget. Despite the favourable position reported below,
we are currently forecasting an adverse variance at year end.

Year to date - May 2020
Actual
Budget
Variance
£000
£000
£000
%

Q1 Budget
2020/21
£000

General Network Costs
General Bus Services
Local Link
Shuttles
Sub-Total General Network

3,047
401
337
3,785

3,129
467
429
4,025

82
66
92
240

2.6%
14.1%
21.4%
6.0%

4,667
712
641
6,019

Schools Services Costs

2,486

2,467

(19)

(0.8%)

3,692

Total – Subsidised Services costs

6,271

6,492

221

3.4%

9,712

General Network Income
General Bus Services
Local Link
Shuttles
Sub-Total General Network

520
61
157
737

506
47
158
712

14
13
(2)
(26)

2.7%
28.3%
(1.0%)
(3.6%)

759
71
237
1,067

Schools Services income*

730

730

1

0.1%

862

Total – Subsidised Services income

1,468

1,441

26

1.8%

1,929

Net Cost - Subsidised Services

4,803

5,051

248

4.9%

7,782

3.

CHANGES TO COMMERCIAL SERVICES (ANNEX A)

3.1

Annex A to this report lists changes to commercial services which, in the view of Transport
for Greater Manchester, are not sufficiently significant to require the provision of
subsidised service replacements. Brief details of the implications of the changes are
provided.

Page 64

4.

CHANGES TO THE COMMERCIAL NETWORK (ANNEX B)

4.1

Annex B to this report lists changes to commercial services and provides brief details of the
implications of these changes, which officers believe are of sufficient importance to require
action by Transport for Greater Manchester. Details of the proposed actions are also
provided.

5.

CHANGES TO GENERAL SUBSIDISED SERVICES (ANNEX C)

5.1

Annex C to this report lists proposals for changes to general subsidised services on which
the views of Members are requested. Information is given about the reasons for proposing
these changes.

6.

REINSTATEMENT OF SUBSIDISED SERVICES (ANNEX D)

6.1

Annex D to this report lists subsidised services which are being reinstated following
reductions or suspensions in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Financial implications are noted in Part B of the agenda.

8.

RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1

Recommendations are set out at the front of this report.

Alison Chew
Interim Head of Bus Services

Page 65

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE COMMERCIAL NETWORK

ANNEX A

The Committee is requested to note the following changes to commercial services:
Dist Service
No. and
Route

Operator

ST
MR

Page 66

TE

ST
MR
TE

7
Stockport –
Reddish –
Gorton Ashton
7A
Stockport –
Reddish –
Gorton Ashton

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

Stagecoach Service rerouted between Stockport
and Reddish to run via Lancashire Hill,
Manchester Road and Broadstone
Road. Alternate journeys will operate
as service 7A as below.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach New service partially replacing service
329. Will operate as current 329 route
between Stockport and Reddish
Browning Road, direct to Gorton via
Reddish Road then via current 7 route
to Ashton. Services 7/7A will each run
hourly, being co-ordinated to run every
30 minutes on common sections.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Dist Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

ST

Stagecoach

Monday to Saturday
daytime service
reduced from every 15
minutes on each
service to every 20
minutes on each
service.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

42B
Manchester –
Didsbury – Cheadle
– Bramhall –
Woodford

Stagecoach

Monday to Saturday
daytime service
reduced from half
hourly to hourly.

26/07/20

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

67

Go North
West

Route change in central
Manchester due to
closure of Blackfriars
Street to operate via
Chapel Street – the
current diversionary
route.

20/07/20

New service 42C coordinates with 42B to
maintain a halfhourly service
between Manchester
and Cheadle.
n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Go North
West

Journeys via Merlin
Road and Cutnook Lane
at Irlam are
renumbered 67A.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

MR
TD

MR
ST

Page 67

MR
SD
TD

11
Stockport –
Cheadle –
Wythenshawe Altrincham

Manchester —
Pendleton — Eccles
— Peel Green —
Irlam — Cadishead

MR

67/67A

SD

Manchester —
Pendleton — Eccles
— Peel Green —
Irlam — Cadishead

TD

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

MR

92

n/a

n/a

Bury — Pilsworth —
Unsworth —
Prestwich — Carr
Clough —
Manchester

Route change in central
Manchester due to closure of
Blackfriars Street to operate
via Chapel Street – the current
diversionary route.

20/07/20

BY

Go North
West

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

MR

93/93A

n/a

n/a

Prestwich – Carr
Clough –
Manchester

Reverts to timetable in
operation prior to 19th April
(previous service improvement
registered from that date was
not introduced due to COVID).
Route change in central
Manchester due to closure of
Blackfriars Street to operate
via Chapel Street – the current
diversionary route.

20/07/20

BY

Go North
West

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

MR

Go North
West

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

MR

97

20/07/20

n/a

n/a

BY

Bury — Unsworth
— Prestwich —
Manchester

Go North
West

Reverts to timetable in
operation prior to 19th April
(previous service improvement
registered from that date was
not introduced due to COVID).
Route change in central
Manchester due to closure of
Blackfriars Street to operate
via Chapel Street – the current
diversionary route.

20/07/20

BY

95
Bury - Prestwich –
Carr Clough –
Pendleton

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Page 68

Dist Service No. and
Route

Dist Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

MR

98

n/a

n/a

Bury — Radcliffe —
Whitefield —
Manchester

Route change in
central Manchester
due to closure of
Blackfriars Street to
operate via Chapel
Street – the current
diversionary route.

20/07/20

BY

Go North
West

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

MR

100

n/a

n/a

Warrington —
Hollins Green —
Irlam — intu
Trafford Centre —
Eccles —
Manchester

Route change in
central Manchester
due to closure of
Blackfriars Street to
operate via Chapel
Street – the current
diversionary route.

20/07/20

SD

Go North
West

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach

Commercial service
revised to operate
between Manchester
and Southern
Cemetery only.

30/08/20

103 follows same
route between
Manchester and
Wythenshawe.
11, 18, 19 and 101
run between
Wythenshawe and
Wythenshawe
Hospital.
101 will provide a
more frequent
service between
Manchester and
Wythenshawe
Hospital.

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage on the
commercial
section.

TD

Page 69

MR

102
Manchester – Moss
Side – Northenden –
Wythenshawe

The tendered
extension to this
service is shown
under Annex C.

Dist Service No.
and Route

Operator

MR
TE

202
Manchester –
Gorton –
Denton – Hyde
– Gee Cross

Page 70

MR
TE

204
Manchester –
Gorton –
Denton – Hyde

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

Stagecoach New service partially replacing
services 204, 206 and 207 operating
every 30 minutes Monday to
Saturday daytime.
The service will operate as the
current 206 service but between
Manchester and Gorton will run
direct via Hyde Road. This change
will shorten the journey time from
Gee Cross and Haughton Green and
will offer a single all day service
instead of the current 3 separate
services running at different times of
the day.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Service withdrawn and replaced by
new service 202.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Dist Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

MR
TE

Stagecoach Service curtailed to operate
Manchester to Dane Bank only.
The Monday to Saturday
daytime service is increased
from every 30 minutes to every
20 minutes partially replacing
services 206 and 207.
Passengers travelling between
Dane Bank and Denton will need
to change buses.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Service withdrawn and replaced
by new service 202 and changes
to service 205.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Service withdrawn and replaced
by new service 202 and changes
to service 205.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

205
Manchester –
West Gorton –
Gorton – Dane
Bank – Denton

Page 71

MR
TE

206
Manchester –
West Gorton –
Gorton – Denton
– Hyde – Gee
Cross

MR
TE

207
Manchester –
West Gorton –
Gorton – Denton
– Hyde – Gee
Cross

Dist Service No.
and Route

Operator

TE

236
Ashton –
Stalybridge –
Glossop

TE

237

Page 72

Ashton –
Stalybridge –
Hadfield –
Glossop
ST

309/310
Stockport –
Cheadle Hulme
– Cheadle
circulars

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

Stagecoach Service withdrawn and
replaced by additional
journeys on service 237. One
pair of stops in GM unserved,
within 500 metres of 237 at
Hollingworth.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Additional journeys
introduced to replace service
236 journeys.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

11/328/368
between
Stockport and
Edgeley.
11/11A
between
Stockport and
Cheadle.
328 between
Cheadle and
Adswood
374 on Garners
Lane.

None – all replacement
services are operated by
Stagecoach

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Services withdrawn and
30/08/20
partially replaced by service
328 (Adswood to Cheadle)
and 374 (Davenport to
Adswood).
The section of route via
Grenville Street, Bloom Street,
Avondale Road and St Lesmo
Road will no longer be served.

Dist Service No.
and Route

Operator

ST

328
Stockport –
Bridge Hall

Page 73

ST

329
Stockport –
Reddish

TE

336 / 337
Ashton –
Hazlehurst –
Hurst –
Smallshaw

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

Stagecoach Service extended from
Bridge Hall via Europa Way,
Bird Hall Lane, Bird Hall
Road, Councillor Lane,
Demmings Road, Queens
Road, Orrishmore Road,
Cheadle Road, Wilmslow
Road to Cheadle.
This service extension will
partially replace service
309/310.

30/08/20

n/a

The evening service will now
be provided by Stagecoach
instead of MCT, as a result
Stagecoach tickets will be
available for use at all times.

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Service withdrawn and
replaced by changes to
service 7 and new service
7A.

30/08/20

7, 7A

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Monday to Saturday daytime
service reduced from every
30 minutes on each service
to every 60 minutes on each
service.

30/08/20

n/a

TBC

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Dist Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

ST

Stagecoach

Monday to Saturday
daytime service reduced
from every 15 minutes on
each service to every 20
minutes on each service.

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Go
Goodwins

New operator (Goodwins
replacing D&G) and revised
Saturday timetable with
frequency reduced from
hourly to every 90 minutes
(this service is subsidised
by Cheshire East)
New hourly daytime service
replacing part of service
574

20/07/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

30/08/20

Bolton – Leigh
582

n/a

TfGM action being
considered for
replacement
service to Markland
Hill

383/384
Stockport –
Offerton – Marple –
Romiley – Bredbury
- Stockport

ST

391/392
Stockport –
Poynton Macclesfield

Page 74

BN

516

WN

Leigh — Atherton
— Westhoughton
— Middlebrook —
Horwich

Diamond

Leigh –
Middlebrook 516
Bolton –
Middlebrook
575/576 or rail
(Horwich
Parkway)

Dist Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

BN

574

Diamond

Service withdrawn

30/08/20

n/a

WN

Leigh — Atherton —
Westhoughton —
Middlebrook —
Markland Hill —
Bolton

Bolton – Leigh
582

TfGM action being
considered for
replacement
service to Markland
Hill

Replaced between
Leigh and
Middlebrook by new
service 516

Leigh –
Middlebrook
516
Bolton –
Middlebrook
575/576 or rail
(Horwich
Parkway)

Page 75

Page 76

Dist Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

WN

Diamond

Route change in
Atherton to serve
Health Centre on Bag
Lane: buses will run
via Derby Street, Bag
Lane and Cross
Street instead of Car
Bank Street

30/08/20

n/a

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Stagecoach Service withdrawn.
Direct services
between Stockport
and Manchester
Airport are
maintained by
services 199 and 313.

30/08/20

High Peak 199,
313

The fast service via M60 is
operated by High Peak
and Stagecoach discount
tickets are not valid.
Stagecoach tickets can
still be used on direct,
albeit longer, service 313.

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

682
Leigh — Atherton —
Hag Fold

ST

X30
Stockport –
Manchester Airport

Page 77

Dist

Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

ST

X50

Stagecoach

Service re-routed to
operate via 291 route
to provide all day
access to employment
in the northern part of
Trafford Park.
All sections of route no
longer served by X50
continue to be served
by alternative services.

30/08/20

150, 250, 255,
256, 263

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Manchester –
Stretford – Trafford
Centre

Page 78

Page 79

Dist

Service No. and
Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

Alternative
Services

Integration impact
(modes/ticketing)

Comments/TfGM
officer
recommendations

RE

X58

Yorkshire
Tiger

Monday to Saturday
timetable withdrawn –
it is understood that
the WYCA tender for
this service may have
passed to another
operator.

30/08/20

Rochdale –
Littleborough
456/457/458
588/589/590

n/a

TfGM officers
liaising with WYCA
colleagues.

Go North
West

Revised timetable with
withdrawal of off-peak
journeys between Darn
Hill, Middleton and
Shudehill.
Morning peak journeys
from Bury to
Manchester, and
afternoon peak
journeys from
Manchester to Bury are
unchanged.
(previous service
improvement
registered from 19
April was not
introduced due to
COVID).

20/07/20

Diamond
162/163

n/a

No TfGM action
proposed at this
stage.

Rochdale —
Littleborough —
Ripponden —
Sowerby Bridge —
Halifax
BY RE
MR

X63
Bury – Middleton –
Shudehill

Page 80

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE COMMERCIAL NETWORK

ANNEX B

The Committee is requested to agree that action is taken regarding the changed or de-registered services detailed in Annex B:
Dist Service No.
and Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

MR

Stagecoach

Diversion of service 101
to operate via
Wythenshawe Hospital
replacing the tendered
element of service 102.

30/08/2020 n/a

101
Manchester –
Moss Side –
Baguley –
Wythenshawe

Page 81

The change will increase
in frequency of the
service between
Manchester and
Wythenshawe Hospital
from every 30 minutes to
every 15 minutes with
the journey time reduced
from 65 to 45 minutes.

Alternative
Services

Integration
Comments/TfGM
impact
officer
(modes/ticketing) recommendations
n/a

The change to 101
replaces the
tendered extension
of the 102 service.
As part of a
package of changes
to services 101 and
102, there are no
cost implications to
this change.

Dist Service No.
and Route

Operator

Proposed Change

Effective
From

ST
MR

Stagecoach

Service 313 extended to
West Side Cargo from
Manchester Airport to
replace the tendered
section of service X30.

30/08/2020 n/a

313
Manchester –
Cheadle Hulme
– Manchester
Airport

The change will maintain
the direct link between
West Side Cargo and
Stockport.

Alternative
Services

Integration
Comments/TfGM
impact
officer
(modes/ticketing) recommendations
n/a

The change to 313
replaces the
tendered extension
of the X30 service.
As part of a
package of changes
to services 313 and
X30, there are no
cost implications to
this change.

Page 82

CHANGES TO THE SUBSIDISED NETWORK
The Committee is invited to consider officers’ proposals on the following services:
Dist
ST

Service, route and operator
7

MR

Stockport – Gorton – Droylsden - Ashton

TE

Operated by Stagecoach

ANNEX C

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Tendered journeys on service 7 operates hourly evenings and Sundays.
The evening service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation
of that business. Between April and July an emergency service has been provided prior to officers being
able to consider a more sustainable and affordable solution.
It is proposed that the service is retained and operated by Stagecoach, but with the following low use
journeys withdrawn:
2234 (Mon-Sat) Ashton to Stockport – curtailed at Gorton
2234 (Sun) Ashton to Stockport & 2334 (Mon-Sat) Ashton to Gorton – withdrawn.

Page 83

The above withdrawals impact on 1.5 passengers per trip, who will need to use the preceding journey.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.
Service 7 is subject to commercial changes as shown in Annex A.
It is proposed that the tendered journeys are amended to operate as service 7B. This service is a hybrid
of new services 7 and 7A, operating via the new 7A route between Stockport and Reddish Longford Road,
then via the 7 service to Ashton.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 30 August
2020.
There will be no impact on the subsidised services budget.

Page 84

Dist
TD
MR

Service, route and operator
18
Trafford Centre – Urmston – Stretford –
Sale – Wythenshawe
Operator TBC

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Service 18 operated hourly daily daytime and evening providing key access to employment links to
Trafford Centre from Trafford and Wythenshawe.
The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of that
business. Between April and July an emergency service has been provided prior to officers being able to
complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.
It is proposed that service 18 will be retained and combined with service 272 to remove a level of
duplication of subsidised services between Stretford and Wythenshawe.
The service is proposed to be extended from Trafford Centre to start back from Eccles and run via
Trafford Park; between Sale Moor and Baguley the service will run via Brooklands and will be extended
from Wythenshawe to Manchester Airport.
The merger of the two routes will see the following improvements:

Page 85

 Direct regular service from Urmston to Trafford Park and Eccles opening access to
employment opportunities and onward connections.
 Direct regular service from Eccles, Urmston, Stretford, Sale, Brooklands, Baguley and Newall
Green to Manchester Airport opening access to employment opportunities and onward
connections.
 Direct regular service from Eccles, Urmston and Stretford to Wythenshawe Hospital.
 Introduction of evening/Sunday service via Dane Road at Sale Moor and Brooklands
increasing accessibility.
In order to allow the merger of the routes, service 18 will no longer serve Northern Moor or Northenden,
customers can use service 41 to interchange at Sale.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 86

Dist
MR
ST

Service, route and operator
42C
Manchester – Didsbury – Cheadle –
Handforth
Operated by Stagecoach

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Service 42C is proposed to be introduced to partially replace service 312 and previously withdrawn
service 130.
The service shall operate as the current service 42B service between Manchester and Cheadle, then
via Schools Hill, Wilmslow Road, Stanley Road and Stanley Green Industrial Estate to Handforth
Retail Park.
The service shall operate every 60 minutes Monday to Saturday daytime.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 87

Page 88

Dist
MR
ST

Service, route and operator
44
Manchester – Moss Side – Withington –
Heaton Mersey - Stockport
Operator TBC

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Service 44 operated hourly Monday to Saturday daytime and 2 hourly Sunday daytime.
The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of
that business. Between April and July an emergency service has been provided prior to officers
being able to complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.
It is proposed that service 44 is broadly replaced by changes to services 171, 217 and 323. Service
217 will replace the service between Manchester and Withington, service 171 between Ladybarn
and Burnage and service 323 will replace the section between Burnage and Stockport.
The following roads become unserved by this proposal:



Lloyd Street North (Moss Side) – between Burlington Street and Denmark Road.
Doncaster Avenue and Whitchurch Road (Old Moat)

Page 89

Each of the above, except for a short section of Barlow Road, is within 400 metres of alternative
services, including 101, 102, 103, 217 and 323.
It is not proposed to replace the Sunday provision which carried an average of 5.1 passengers per
journey but would require reinstatements across 3 services to retain.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 90

Dist
TD

Service, route and operator
84A

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Service 84A operates hourly Monday to Saturday off peak and 2 return journeys on Sunday daytimes.

Merseybank – Chorlton – Stretford –
Urmston - Davyhulme

The Sunday daytime service carries an average of 3.4 passenger per journey, with a cost per passenger of
£9.61.

Operated by Diamond Bus

It is proposed that this service is withdrawn to release the funding and resource to operate the revised
service 18 which will provide wider connectivity from Davyhulme, Urmston and Stretford.
There are no changes proposed to the Monday to Saturday service operated by Go Goodwins which is
retained unchanged.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 91

MR

102
Manchester – Moss Side – Northenden –
Wythenshawe – Wythenshawe Hospital
Operated by Stagecoach

Service 102 operates every 30 minutes Monday to Saturday daytime and hourly Sunday daytimes.
The service operates commercially between Manchester and Wythenshawe and extends under tender
through to Wythenshawe Hospital to provide a direct link between Manchester and Wythenshawe
Hospital.
Due to the removal of the commercial 102 service from Wythenshawe, it is no longer possible to extend
a service from there and therefore the tendered extension with need to be withdrawn.
Officers have worked with Stagecoach to maintain the link through to Manchester on revised service 101
and this is reflected in Annex B.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 30 August
2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 101 and 102, there are no cost implications to this change.

Dist
MR

Service, route and operator
171
Newton Heath – Clayton – Openshaw –
Gorton – Levenshulme – East Didsbury
Operated by Stagecoach

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Service 171 operates hourly Monday to Saturday daytime.
It is proposed that the service is re-routed between Levenshulme and Didsbury to operate via
Ladybarn and Parrs Wood Road to replace services 44 and 179. The current 171 route would be
replaced by changes to service 172.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
There are no changes to the subsidised service budget as a result of this change.

MR

172
Newton Heath – Clayton – Openshaw –
Gorton – Levenshulme – East Didsbury

Page 92

Operated by Stagecoach

Service 172 operates hourly daily daytime and evening.
It is proposed that the service is re-routed between Levenshulme and Burnage to operate via
Errwood Road (the current 171 route) instead of the parallel Burnage Lane, to allow the re-routing of
service 171.
The change will introduce an evening/Sunday service on Errwood Road, with Burnage Lane
continuing to be served by the 197.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
There are no changes to the subsidised service budget as a result of this change.

Page 93

Dist
MR
ST

Service, route and operator
179

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Service 179 operates hourly Monday to Saturday daytime.

Wythenshawe – Northenden –
Withington – Levenshulme – Reddish

It is proposed that service 179 is withdrawn and replaced by changes to services 171 between
Levenshulme and Ladybarn and service 217 between Withington and Wythenshawe Hospital.

Operated by Diamond Bus

Passenger numbers on service 179 is 62,000 per year, most of these will be able to access alternative
services as detailed above.
The following roads become unserved by this proposal:


Page 94





Barlow Road (Levenshulme) and Longford Road West (Reddish) – between Mount Road and
Browning Road.
Avon Road (Burnage)
Talbot Road, Wald Avenue, Kingswood Road (Ladybarn)
Royal Oak Road, Spark Road (Baguley)

Each of the above, except for a short section of Barlow Road is within 400 metres of alternative services,
including 25, 172, 197, 217 and 329
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 95

Dist
ST

Service, route and operator
197
Stockport – Burnage – Levenshulme –
Manchester
Operated by Stagecoach

TfGM officer comments and recommendations
Tendered journeys on service 197 operates hourly evenings and Sundays.
The evening and Sunday service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to
the cessation of that business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to
officers being able to complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.
It is proposed that the service is retained and operated by Stagecoach, but with the following low use
journeys withdrawn to reduce the cost:
Mon-Sat – 2315 Stockport to Manchester
Sun – 0756/2301 Manchester to Stockport, 2215/2315 Stockport to Manchester
The above withdrawals impacts on an average of 2.2 passenger journeys per trip, who will need to use
the next or preceding journey.

Page 96

Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.
MR
TE

217
Manchester – Clayton - Ashton
Operated by Diamond Bus

Service 217 operates hourly Monday to Saturday daytime between Manchester and Ashton and hourly
evenings/Sundays between Manchester and Droylsden.
It is proposed to extend the Monday to Saturday daytime service from Manchester via MRI, Moss Side,
Withington, Northenden and Baguley to Wythenshawe Hospital partially replacing services 44 and 179.
This change will introduce new direct links from East Manchester and Ashton to MRI and Wythenshawe
Hospitals.
The service will run via the current 217 between Ashton and Manchester then via Oxford Road, Denmark
Road, Lloyd Street, Mauldeth Road West, Old Moat Lane, current 179 route to Northenden, Roundwood
Road, Altrincham Road, Southmoor Road to Wythenshawe Hospital.
The service will operate hourly Monday to Saturday daytimes between Wythenshawe and Ashton, with
the evening and Sunday service between Manchester and Droylsden remaining unchanged.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 97

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

245

Tendered journeys on service 245 previously operated 2-hourly evenings.

Altrincham – Sale – Trafford Centre

The evening service was previously operated by Diamond Bus prior to the expiry of the contract in April
2020.

Operator TBC

Due to the Coronavirus situation, officers had been unable to propose a resolution to the reinstatement
of journeys on this service by redeployment of resource from low use journeys in Trafford.
This work has now been completed and it is proposed to reinstate an evening service on service 245 to
facilitate access to employment at both Trafford Centre and Trafford General Hospital, as well as early
morning journeys into Altrincham.
This change will reinstate 13, 478 journeys per year that would otherwise have necessitated interchange
between low frequency services.

Page 98

Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 245 and 281-287, there are no cost implications to this
change.

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

260

Service 260 operates hourly Monday to Saturday daytime throughout and every 2 hours Sunday
daytimes.

Sale - Partington
Operator TBC

It is proposed that service 260 is rerouted to replace service 262 between Sale and Ashton to remove a
level of duplication on this route.
The service will operate as the current 262 route between Sale and Ashton Epping Drive then via the
current 260 route to Partington.
The deviation in Partington to operate to Oak Drive terminus is removed, this is served by services 247
and 255.
The combination of these services sees the reintroduction of a peak time service to the Glebelands Road
area of Sale.

Page 99

The Sunday service is recommended for withdrawal due to low use. This impacts on 913 passengers per
year, all of whom have access to alternative services (19, 247, 255 and Partington Local Link).
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.
TD

262 (OLD)

Service 262 operates hourly Monday to Saturday off peak.

Sale – Ashton on Mersey

It is proposed that service 262 is replaced by a rerouted service 260 which operates on an increased span
of operation. The resource released from operating a service to Ashton on Mersey will allow the
operation of a service to Brooklands partially replacing service 272.

Operator TBC

Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 100

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

262 (NEW)

Service 262 is proposed to operate hourly Monday to Saturday off peak.

Sale – Brooklands

It is proposed that new service 262 is introduced to operate a service from Sale to Sale Moor and
Brooklands, serving Derbyshire Road South and Craddock Road.

Operator TBC

This service would partially replace service 272 in those areas of Sale Moor and Brooklands which
would not be suitable for operation of a 7 day a week late evening service.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 101

TD

272

MR

Eccles – Trafford Park – Stretford – Sale –
Brooklands – Wythenshawe
Operator TBC

Service 272 operates hourly Monday to Saturday daytime throughout and every 2 hours between
Sale and Baguley Sunday daytimes.
It is proposed that service 272 is combined with service 18 to remove a level of duplication of
subsidised services between Stretford and Wythenshawe.
All the unique sections of service 272 will be replaced by service 18 which operates on an increased
span of operation including an hourly service on Sundays.
Parts of the route in Sale Moor which are unsuitable for evening operation will be replaced by
services 262 and 281.
In order to allow the merger of the routes, Benchill will no longer be served by 272 or the
replacement service 18, customers can use services 43, 102 or 103 to interchange at Wythenshawe.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 102

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

281

MR

Altrincham – Broadheath – Timperley –
Brooklands – Sale

Service 281 operates hourly Monday to Saturday daytime throughout and every 30 minutes on Sunday
daytime between Altrincham and Broadheath.

Operator TBC

Service 281 was previously funded between Altrincham and Broadheath by a section 106 agreement with
Trafford Council as part of the opening of the ASDA superstore. This funding expired in April 2020.
It is proposed that service 281 is rerouted to no longer serve Broadheath Industrial Estate, which
continues to be served by CAT5A. The service will be rerouted to serve Sale Moor to partially replace
service 272.
It is further proposed that the evening/Sunday service which operated solely between Altrincham and
Broadheath Industrial Estate is withdrawn. This impacts on 2148 passengers per year, who will need to
use 19, 245, 247 or 263, all of which run proximate to Broadheath Industrial Estate.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.

Page 103

The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 104

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

282

Service 282 operates every hour daily daytimes and 2-hourly daily evenings.

Altrincham – Oldfield Brow

In order to provide resource to redeploy to reinstate the 245 service, it is proposed to withdraw the
following first/last journeys on this service due to low use:

Operator TBC

0620 (Mon-Fri), 0731 (Sat), 0922 (Sun), 2250 (Mon-Thu).
The above withdrawals impacts on 319 passenger journeys per year, who will need to use the next or
preceding journey.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 245 and 281-287, there are no cost implications to this
change.

Page 105

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

283/284

Services 283 and 284 operates every hour Monday to Saturday daytimes and 2-hourly Sunday and
weekday evenings.

Altrincham – Hale – Hale Barns circular
Operator TBC

Due to an increase in passenger numbers on these services and the release of resource from service 281,
it is proposed to increase the Sunday daytime services from 2-hourly to hourly on each service.
In order to provide resource to redeploy to reinstate the 245 service, it is proposed to withdraw the
following last journeys on this service due to low use:
283 - 2126 (Mon-Thu)
The above withdrawals impacts on 471 passenger journeys per year, who will need to use the preceding
journey or use service 88 which runs later.

Page 106

Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 245 and 281-287, there are no cost implications to this
change.
TD

285/286

Services 285 and 286 operates every hour daytimes and 2-hourly evenings.

Altrincham – Timperley circulars

In order to provide resource to redeploy to reinstate the 245 service, it is proposed to withdraw the
following first/last journeys on this service due to low use:

Operator TBC

285 – 2215 (Mon-Thu)
286 – 0715 (Sat)
The above withdrawals impacts on 562 passenger journeys per year, who will need to use the next or
preceding journey.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 245 and 281-287, there are no cost implications to this
change.

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

TD

287

Service 287 operates every hour daytimes and 2-hourly evenings.

Altrincham – Bowdon Vale

In order to provide resource to redeploy to reinstate the 245 service, it is proposed to withdraw the
following first/last journeys on this service due to low use:

Operator TBC

0554 (Mon-Fri), 0705 (Sat), 0922 (Sun), 2150 (Mon-Thu).
The above withdrawals impacts on 582 passenger journeys per year, who will need to use the next or
preceding journey.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 245 and 281-287, there are no cost implications to this
change.

Page 107

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

307/308

Services 307/308 operated hourly Monday to Saturday daytime.

Stockport – Stepping Hill – Hazel Grove –
Bramhall – Cheadle Hulme – Bridge Hall Stockport
Operator TBC

The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of that
business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers being able to
complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.
It is proposed that services 307/308 are withdrawn and partially replaced by changes to services 328, 374
and 378/379.
Service 328 is extended beyond Adswood to Cheadle.
Service 374 is amended to operate via Norbury Moor and Fiveways.
Service 378/379 is amended to operate via Pownall Green and alternate journeys via Ack Lane.

Page 108

The following roads become unserved by this proposal:






Councillor Lane, between Stockport Road and Demmings Road
Buckingham Road and Queens Road (Cheadle Hulme)
Bridge Lane, Jacksons Lane, Cavendish Road (Bramhall Green - Hazel Grove)
Mile End Lane and Lowndes Lane (Heaviley)
Banks Lane (Little Moor)

Each of the above, except for a short section of Mile End Lane in Heaviley is within 400 metres of
alternative services, including 11, 314, 328, 358, 364, 368, 374, 375, 378, 379, 383, 384, 391 and 392.
The withdrawal of the service will see the loss of direct services to Stepping Hill Hospital from Little
Moor, Bramhall, Cheadle Hulme and Adswood – passengers can use services to connect via Stockport
with similar journey times.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 109

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

309/310

Tendered journeys on services 309/310 each operate hourly daily evenings.

Stockport – Cheadle Hulme – Cheadle
circulars
Operator TBC

Services 309/310 are subject to commercial changes as shown in Annex A.
It is proposed that the tendered journeys are amended to reflect the operation of the commercial
service to enable passenger familiarity.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 30 August
2020.
There will be no impact on the subsidised services budget.

Page 110

Page 111

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

312

Services 312 operated hourly Monday to Saturday daytime and 2-hourly Sunday daytime.

Stockport – Cheadle – Heald Green –
Handforth Dean

The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of
that business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers
being able to complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.

Operator TBC

It is proposed that service 312 is withdrawn and partially replaced by changes to services 42C and
378/379.
Service 42C is a variation of the 42B service with alternate journeys diverting at Cheadle to operate
via Schools Hill, Wilmslow Road to Handforth Retail Park.
Service 378/379 is extended from Grove Lane terminus to operate via Handforth Retail Park,
Wilmslow Road, Outwood Road, Finney Lane, Cheadle Hulme and Ack Lane returning to Stockport.

Page 112

All the 312 route is replaced by alternative services, including 11A, 42B, 42C, 313, 368, 378 and 379.
It is not proposed to replace the Sunday provision which carried an average of 4.6 passengers per
journey but would require reinstatements across 3 services to retain; some of these passengers can
travel on alternative services 11, 11A and 42B.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July
2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 113

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

323

Service 323 is proposed to be introduced to partially replace service 44.

Stockport – Heaton Mersey

The service shall operate as the current service 44 service between Stockport and Station Road at Heaton
Mersey returning via Didsbury Road to Stockport.

Operator TBC

The service shall operate every 60 minutes Monday to Saturday off peak.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.
ST

328
Stockport – Bridge Hall

Page 114

Operator TBC

Tendered journeys on service 328 operate hourly daily evenings and Sunday daytimes.
Service 328 is subject to commercial changes as shown in Annex A.
It is proposed that the tendered journeys are amended to reflect the operation of the commercial service
to enable passenger familiarity.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 30 August
2020.
There will be no impact on the subsidised services budget.

Page 115

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

329

Tendered journeys on service 329 operates hourly evenings and Sundays.

Stockport – North Reddish
Operated by Stagecoach

The evening service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation
of that business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers being
able to complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.
It is proposed that the service is retained and operated by Stagecoach, but with the following low use
journeys withdrawn to reduce the cost:
The following journeys will not be replaced:
2320 (Daily) Stockport to North Reddish.

Page 116

The above withdrawals impacts on 280 passenger journeys per year, who will need to use the next or
preceding journey.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Service 329 is subject to commercial changes as shown in Annex A.
It is proposed that the tendered journeys are amended to operate as service 7B as indicated above.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 30 August
2020.
There will be no impact on the subsidised services budget.

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

372

Services 372 operated hourly Monday to Saturday daytime.

Stockport – Woodsmoor – Midland Road
estate Circular

The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of that
business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers being able to
complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.

Operator TBC

It is proposed that service 372 is withdrawn and replaced by changes to service 374.
Service 374 is amended to operate via Midland Road estate.
All the 372 route is within 400 metres of alternative services, including 192, 374, 378 and rail.
The following roads become unserved by this proposal:


Woodsmoor Lane, Crossway, Moorland Road (Woodsmoor)

Page 117

Woodsmoor continues to be served by rail services and is within 600 metres of high frequency service
192.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 118

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

373

Services 373 operated hourly Monday to Saturday daytime.

Stockport – Stepping Hill – Torkington –
Hazel Grove (Fiveways)

The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of that
business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers being able to
complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.

Operator TBC

It is proposed that service 373 is withdrawn and replaced by changes to service 374.
Service 374 is amended to operate via Torkington.
All the 373 route is within 400 metres of alternative services, including 192, 358, 374, 375, 383 and 384.
The following roads become unserved by this proposal:


Maitland Street, Windermere Road (Heaviley)

Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.

Page 119

The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.
ST

374

Service 374 is proposed to be amended to partially replace services 307/308, 309/310, 372 and 373.

Stockport – Davenport – Hazel Grove

The service shall be amended between Stockport and Bramhall Moor to operate via Range Road,
Adswood Road and Garners Lane and also via Midland Road, North Park Road, Lugano Road, Geneva
Road and Handley Road.

Operator TBC

The service shall be further amended beyond Bramhall Moor to operate via Chester Road, Dean Road,
Mill Lane, Chatsworth Road, Macclesfield Road, London Road, Hazel Grove Station, London Road and
Torkington Road to Torkington Estate.
The service shall operate every 60 minutes Monday to Saturday daytimes.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 120

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

378

Service 378 is proposed to be amended to partially replace services 307/308 and 312.

Stockport – Bramhall Green – Bramhall –
Gillbent

The service shall be amended between Bramhall Green and Bramhall to operate via Pownall Green. It
shall then be extended from Grove Lane terminus to operate via Stanley Road, Wilmslow Road, Outwood
Road, Finney Lane, Etchells Road, Turves Road, Albert Road, Station Road, Ravenoak Road, Ack Lane
West, Ack Lane East to Bramhall Green returning from there via Pownall Green and the existing 378
route to Stockport.

Operator TBC

The reverse service around the loop will operate as service 379.
Each service shall operate every 60 minutes Monday to Saturday daytimes co-ordinating to operate
every 30 minutes between Stockport and Bramhall Green. The evening and Sunday service will continue
to operate hourly between Stockport and Gillbent.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.

Page 121

The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 122

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

382

Services 382 operated hourly daily daytime.

Stockport – Bredbury – Romiley – Greave
– Werneth

The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of that
business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers being able to
complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.

Operator TBC

It is proposed to retain the service as now albeit that the Sunday service is withdrawn. This impacts on an
average of 2.9 passengers per trip, some of whom can travel on alternative services 383 and 384.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Page 123

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

BN

516

WN

Leigh — Atherton — Westhoughton —
Middlebrook — Horwich

Service 516 operates hourly Monday to Saturday evenings and Sunday daytimes with financial support
from Transport for Greater Manchester.

Operated by Tyrers (Sundays daytime)
and Vision Bus (daily evenings)

At present, Diamond commercial service 574 provides the Monday to Saturday daytime service between
Leigh and Middlebrook. As noted in Annex A, the 574 will be withdrawn and Diamond will operate an
hourly daytime service on the 516 route between Leigh and Horwich via Middlebrook instead.
It is proposed that the route of the subsidised journeys is altered to match the daytime commercial
journeys (running via Lostock Road and Lostock Lane between Wingates and Middlebrook, and via
Victoria Road and Church Street between Middlebrook and Horwich).
Members are asked to approve the above recommendation, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
There will be no impact on the subsidised services budget.

Page 124

TD

X5

Service X5 operated hourly Monday to Saturday daytime and 2 hourly Sunday daytime.

MR

Sale – Northenden - Stockport

ST

Operator TBC

The service was previously operated by Manchester Community Transport prior to the cessation of that
business. Between April and July and emergency service has been provided prior to officers being able to
complete a more sustainable and affordable solution.
Service X5 provides a direct link between Sale, Sale Moor and Stockport via the M60 Motorway. No
sections of route are exclusively provided by service X5 and the service has continued to operate to
provide connectivity for commuters and shoppers.
It is proposed that service X5 is withdrawn except for journeys at Monday to Friday peak times utilising
the bus from service 261/262.
Customers from Sale and Sale Moor can use service 41 to Northenden to interchange with service 11 to
Stockport or at West Didsbury to interchange with service 23.
There are 10,985 passengers per year who travel on the off-peak/weekend service without a direct
service into Stockport from Trafford.
Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 26 July 2020.
The impact on the subsidised service budget is shown in Part B.

Dist

Service, route and operator

TfGM officer comments and recommendations

ST

X30

Service X30 operates every 30 minutes Monday to Saturday daytime and hourly daily evenings and
Sunday daytimes.

MR

Stockport – Manchester Airport – West
Side Cargo
Operator TBC

The service operates commercially between Stockport and Manchester Airport and extends under tender
through to West Side Cargo to provide a direct link between Stockport and key employment sites on the
west side of the Airport complex.
Due to the removal of the commercial X30 service from Manchester Airport, it is no longer possible to
extend the X30 service from there and therefore the tendered extension has been added to Stagecoach’s
other direct service to Stockport.
Officers have worked with Stagecoach to maintain the link through to Stockport on revised service 313
and this is reflected in Annex B.

Page 125

Members are asked to approve the above recommendations, which would be effective 30 August
2020.
As part of a package of changes to services 313 and X30, there are no cost implications to this change.

REINSTATEMENT OF THE SUBSIDISED NETWORK
The Committee is requested to note and approve the following reinstatement of subsidised services:
Service
No.

Current
Operator

Days of
Operation

1

Go Ahead

Daily

2

Go Ahead

Journey Description

District

Piccadilly - Chinatown
- Spinningfields
circular

MR

Daily

MR

Page 126

Piccadilly - Deansgate
- Victoria circular
3

Go Ahead

Daily
evenings

B1

Transdev
B&P

Mon - Sat
Day times

B4

Transdev
B&P

Mon - Sat
daytime

Transdev
B&P
Transdev
B&P

Mon - Sat
daytime
Mon - Sat
daytime

R4
R5

Piccadilly - Deansgate
- Victoria circular
Ramsbottom Summerseat - Bury

MR
BY
BY RE

Heywood - Bury
Lady House - Milnrow
- Rochdale
Peppermint Bridge Rochdale

RE
RE

Previous rationalisation
Withdraw after 1700hrs
(daily) passengers can
use service 2
Mon-Fri: 20 min Sat:15
min Sun:12min. MonSat: Last bus at earlier
time of 2200. Sunday:
Last bus at earlier time
of 1800.
Service suspended
Every 90 mins
(contracted hourly)
Reduce to 2hrly but
maintain first & last
buses
Reduce to every 90
minutes
Reduce to every 90
minutes

ANNEX D

Restored contracted
frequency

Effective
date

Reinstate post 1700
service.

05.07.20

Restore pre-Covid
frequencies on Mon Fri (every 10 mins/15
mins during evening).
Reinstate later evening
service.
Service reinstated to
pre-Covid service
levels.

05.07.20

05.07.20

Hourly

06.07.20

Hourly

06.07.20

Hourly

06.07.20

Hourly

06.07.20

Agenda Item 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 127

This page is intentionally left blank

